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About us
We are the leading company specialising in the development and production of in-
terior and exterior car components in Croatia and one of the leading companies in 
Eastern Europe. We have over 30 years of experience in the automotive industry. AD 
Plastik Group is a multinational company with seven production locations in four 
countries. Our operational activities spread across 59 countries in five continents.

We collaborate with our buyers from the early stages of 
development to the final product. We use modern 
tools and techniques while applying specific 

expertise, skills and experience. Our core value is a focus on customer needs, while 
maintaining high quality and competitiveness of products and services. 
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Key events in 2017

AD Plastik Kaluga in Russia was awarded the deal 
for manufacturing injected trims for Nissan Qashqai 
automobile. Serial production is planned to start in 
June 2018 and the new Nissan Qashqai will be man-
ufactured at their factory in Saint Petersburg. 

“Apart from further localization and the increase 
of materialization with Nissan in Russia, this deal 
hr hlonqs`ms adb`trd sghr hr sgd ǐqrs shld vd vdqd 
nominated as Nissan’s development supplier. We 
are in charge of developing products and tools”, said 
Mislav Čelar, Sales Director for the Russian market.

Expected revenue is valued at EUR 2.2 million in the four-year period.

Nissan

AD Plastik signed a Grant Agreement with the Cro-
atian Ministry of Economy, Entrepreneurship and 
Crafts and the Croatian Agency for SMEs, Innova-
shnm `mc Hmudrsldmsr enq oqnidbsr ǐm`mbdc eqnl sgd 
European Structural and Investment Funds in the 
ǐm`mbh`k odqhnc 1/03, 1/1/- Otqrt`ms sn sgd `enqd-
mentioned Agreement, we received a grant in the 
amount of HRK 19,632,690.36 for the research de-
velopment project “Painting pilot line for industrial 

research, development and innovation.” The project 
needs to be implemented within 48 months from its 
start or by 30 June 2020 at the latest. The project 
is worth a total of a little over HRK 74 million and it 
will enable the development of new interior painting 
technologies within AD Plastik Group, which will be 
one of the factors generating the growth of sales in 
the medium term.

Awarded grants

@C Ok`rshj Fqnto hr nmd ne sgd ǐqrs Bqn`sh`m bnlo`-
nies to have signed the Diversity Charter, which was 
developed as part of the joint project of the Croatian 
Business Council for Sustainable Development (HR 
PSOR) and partners from Slovenia and Romania. 
President of AD Plastik Group’s Management Board, 
Marinko Došen, was also designated Ambassador of 
Diversity.

 “Being the ambassador of the Diversi-
ty Charter for me is a responsibility, but 
above all a pleasure, because I can per-
sonally contribute to the development and 
progress of this project. This is another in 
the line of recognition of AD Plastik Group 
for our achievements and progress in the 
area of social responsibility," said Marinko 
Došen.

Diversity Charter

@C Ok`rshj Fqnto Ʈ Hmsdfq`sdc `mmt`k ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldms 1/06 11



















Members of the Supervisory Board

Dmitrij Leonidovič Drandin, President
•• current mandate from 19 October 2015 to 19 October 2019
•• appointed by the shareholders of the Open joint stock company Holding Autokomponenti

Ivica Tolić, Vice President
•• current mandate from 20 July 2016 to 20 July 2020
•• appointed by the General Assembly

Hrvoje Jurišić, member
•• current mandate from 20 July 2016 to 20 July 2020
•• appointed by the General Assembly

Zoja Crnečki, member
•• current mandate from 20 July 2017 to 20 July 2021
•• appointed by the General Assembly

Igor Antoljević Solomatin, member
•• current mandate from 23 July 2015 to 23 July 2019
•• appointed by the General Assembly

Nadezhda Anatolyevna Nikitina, member
•• current mandate from 19 October 2015 to 19 October 2019
•• appointed by the shareholders of the Open joint stock company Holding Autokomponenti

Robert Kuhta, member
•• current mandate from 30 October 2017 to 30 October 2021
•• appointed by the Workers’ Council

Statement on the remuneration policy for members of the Supervisory 
Board

Pursuant to the Statutes, the members of the Supervisory Board may be remunerated for their work; the re-
munerated amount shall be determined by a decision of the General Assembly for the business year in which 
the remuneration will be paid, depending on the results of business and the company’s state. 
In the year 2017, the decision on the payment of remuneration to members of the Supervisory Board was not 
made.

Pursuant to the decision, the following remunerations to the members of the Supervisory Board have been 
determined: 

•• the President shall receive a remuneration in the amount of 1.5 gross average monthly salaries per each 
meeting; 

•• other members shall receive a remuneration in the amount of one gross average monthly salary per each 
meeting.

The amount of remuneration shall be determined on the basis of gross average monthly salaries of employees 
achieved in the three months prior to the payment of such remuneration. Remuneration is paid after each 
meeting of the Supervisory Board. 

Corporate governance
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Statement on the remuneration policy for members of the Management Board

Management Board members signed managerial 
bnmsq`bsr vhsg sgd Bnlo`mx+ cdǐmhmf sgdhq qhfgsr 
and obligations:

•• lnmsgkx r`k`qx hr rodbhǐdc `r sgd fqnrr 
amount that depends on adhering to the time-
s`akd cdǐmdc ax sgd Bnkkdbshud @fqddldms:

•• annual bonus (remuneration) based on 
successfully achieving set objectives in the 
`lntms ne `s kd`rs nmd `mc to sn ǐud `udq`fd 
monthly salaries, depending on the degree and 
extent of achievement of set objectives;

•• .life insurance policy with an annual premium in 
the amount of EUR 3,000;

•• .qhfgs sn trd `m neǐbh`k Bnlo`mx udghbkd:
•• .severance payment in the event of the termi-

nation of the mandate, unless the member 
was removed prior to the expiry of mandate or 
resigned himself.

At the Supervisory Board meeting held on 25 May 
2017 Management Board members were awarded 
with remunerations by reason of successful busi-
ness in 2016. The President and other Management 
Board members were awarded three monthly sal-
aries, paid out in full in the form of the Company’s 
shares.

Corporate governance
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Corporate functions

The corporate functions of AD Plastik Group are the following: 

•• Controlling, 
•• Internal Audit, 
•• Human Resources, 
•• Research & Development, 
•• Sales, 
•• Strategic Procurement, 
•• Central Logistics, 
•• Finance, 
•• Legal Affairs, 
•• Enterprise Architecture, 
•• IT, 
•• Occupational Health and Safety, 
•• Quality System, and 
•• Production

D`bg bnqonq`sd etmbshnm g`r ` cdǐmdc onrhshnm `s sgd dwdbtshud kdudk 
corresponding to the highest managing body or a corresponding man-
aging position (Director, Manager), it is directly responsible to the Man-
agement Board and it reports its plans, progress and task implementa-
tion to the Management Board.

President of AD Plastik’s Management Board is the executive manag-
er for the following areas: Human Resources, Enterprise Architecture, 
Quality System, Production, Logistics, Legal Affairs, Safety and General 
Affairs. 

The Management Board occasionally sets up consultations with the 
Group’s individual stakeholders, while regular consultations have been 

delegated to the management, who is obliged to provide feedback to 
the Management Board. Upon adopting strategies and plans, existing 
governance methods are analysed and new, more advanced methods 
are proposed; each corporate function regularly proposes improve-
ments in their respective areas. The Management Board constantly 
aims at improving collective knowledge on all relevant topics. 

Sgd L`m`fdldms An`qcƦr deǐbhdmbx hr `rrdrrdc `mc du`kt`sdc `s sgd 
Supervisory Board’s regular meetings. Evaluation is based on indica-
tors of business results and building and maintaining a positive Compa-
ny image in all relevant communities. 

Pursuant to the Croatian Companies Act, no member of the Manage-
ment Board may be appointed member of the Management or Supervi-

sory Board of another company that operates in the same line of work 
as the Company, without prior consent of the Supervisory Board. They 
may also not, without prior consent of the Supervisory Board, take part 
in the decision-making process or close legal deals if their legal repre-
sentative, procurator or proxy of the other party is their blood relative 
or spouse, cohabiting partner or in-law relative up to the second de-
gree. Members of the Management Board may not take part in the deci-
sion-making process connected with any legal affair in which there is a 
conflict of interest between the member of the Management Board and 
the Company. The Management Board member is obliged to inform the 
other members as well as the Supervisory Board of the circumstances, 
whether or not they take part in the decision-making process or the 
closing of the legal deal. They need to state all relevant facts regard-
ing the nature of their relationship with the other contracting party and 
their own estimate on the existence of conflict of interest.

Corporate governance
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•	 	The Company’s Management Board was appointed in 2016, for the 
period of four years, and no changes occurred in the Management 
Board members during the reporting period. An even balance was es-
tablished as per gender, skills, experience and competence criteria, 
which is evident from the members’ CVs. 

	 The Supervisory Board consists of seven members, three of whom 
are Russian citizens, while four members are Croatian citizens. With 
respect to the gender criteria, the Supervisory Board consists of two 
vnldm `mc ǐud ldm+ `mc sgd `fd bqhsdqh` v`r etkǐkkdc ax g`uhmf ` 
good age balance ranging from 32 to 66 years of age. 

	 Members of the Supervisory Board are listed on page 19.

	 Marinko Došen,  
President of the Management Board

	 Katija Klepo,  
Member of the Management Board

	 Sanja Biočić,  
Member of the Management Board

	 Mladen Peroš,  
Member of the Management Board

Statement on the Application of the Corporate Governance Principle (continued)

Corporate governance
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Ethics and Integrity

etmbshnmhmf ne sgd l`qjds- Ax cdǐmhmf dsghb`k bqhsdqh`+ vd bnmsqhatsd sn 
sq`mro`qdms `mc deǐbhdms atrhmdrr nodq`shnmr-

@C Ok`rshj Fqnto hr `f`hmrs `mx l`sdqh`k nq ǐm`mbh`k rtoonqs ne onkhs-
ical parties, or giving political contributions. We promote transparent 
and public advocacy of various public policies through business and 
interest organisations, public appearances, expert discussions or direct 

suggestions and comments to a competent au-
thority.

The AD Plastik Group respects the basic prin-
ciples of free competition, and accordingly 
forbids coordinated actions of entrepreneurs, 
agreements between them and decisions of as-
sociations that aim to or result in a disruption of 
competition, and which place the Company in an 
advantageous position in relation to the compe-
tition and customers. In accordance with that, 
the Anti-Monopoly Policy was adopted at the 
Group level which is also a part of the printed 
brochure. With regards to violating principles of 
eqdd bnlodshshnm `mc rodbhǐdc kdfhrk`shnm+ sgdqd 
were no complaints in the reporting period. 

During the reporting period, the Code of Business Conduct and Policies 
brochure of AD Plastic Group was prepared in three languages and print-
ed and distributed to all employees in all locations.

Anti-corruption policy was promoted Group-wide and materials were 
printed and distributed to all existing and new employees. It was also 
published on the Company’s website and introduced to all our stake-
holders. During the period considered, there 
were no reports nor suspected corruption in any 
form, so no risk assessment measures were im-
plemented in 2017 due to suspected corruption. 

Education and training of employee of all levels 
take place regularly and their purpose is to im-
prove understanding of the dangers of bribery 
and corruption. We show zero tolerance for any 
form of bribery and corruption, and all employ-
ees are familiar with their duty to report any 
conflict of interest or corruptive practice direct-
ly to their managers, Human Resources or Legal 
Service. 

Sgd Bncd ne Atrhmdrr Bnmctbs cdǐmdr sg`s+ 
when exchanging gifts, the gifts must be legal 
and their value may not exceed EUR 200. It is 
especially highlighted that gifts from business 
partners may not be received at the time of 
sending a price quotation. The Code promotes 
the culture of ethic behaviour, and all irregular-
ities can be reported orally, in writing or anony-

mously. Violating the Code or the prescribed policies may lead to disci-
plinary action.

We have signed the Code of Business Ethics issued by the Croatian 
Chamber of Commerce, whereby we are committed to exhibit respon-
sible and ethical behaviour as a necessary precondition for effective 

Corporate governance
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ADPL Share

Shareholders structure as of 31.12.2017

OAO Holding, Rusija

30.0%

33

Pension funds

Addiko Bank d.d. / Raiffeisen 0MF category B..................... 7.49%

Addiko Bank d.d. / Raiffeisen DMF.......................................4.85%

Addiko Bank d.d. / PBZ C0 0MF category B..........................2.90%

HPB d.d. / Capital fund......................................................... 2.78%

Societe Generale-Splitska banka d.d. / Erste Plavi cat. B...2.08%

Others.................................................................................... 1.80%

21.91%

Management and employees

15.05%

ADP ESOP.......................................1.95%

Others........................................... 13.10%

Other institutional investors

Erste bank d.d. / Joint custod. acc. for a foreign legal ent..2.51%

PBZ d.d. / State Street client account.................................. 2.17%

Zaba / State Street Bank and Trust Company, Boston......... 1.69%

PBZ d.d. / Joint custodial account of a client...................... 1.27%

Zagrebačka banka d.d. / ZB Aktiv..........................................1.14%

Others....................................................................................4.95%

13.72%

100%

OAO Holding, Russia............................. 30.00%
Pension funds........................................21.91%
Management and employees.................15.05%
Other institutional investors..................13.72%
Small shareholders................................18.76%
Treasury shares....................................... 0.57%









Research and Development

Research and development importance and activities (continued)

AD Plastik Group engineering expert team is capable of providing a 
quick and quality response to the market requirements they are faced 
with, thus creating new directions and higher development and produc-
shnm rs`mc`qcr- Sghr dmrtqdr adssdq `mc lnqd deǐbhdms rnktshnmr enq sgd 
customers.

Environmental Protection

We systematically carry out activities aimed at reducing harmful ve-
hicle gas emissions into the environment, i.e. minimising their impact. 
The goal of the global automotive industry is a continuous reduction in 
CO2 emission.

Therefore, a special attention is paid, in the product and process devel-
opment stage, to environmental aspects of choosing raw materials and 
materials. For this purpose, the environmental impact until the end of 
their life cycle is analysed.

Reduction in emissions is, among other things, achieved by reducing 
the vehicle weight, i.e. by reducing the weight of each individual compo-
nent and using the so called lightweight materials. By researching new 
materials, and by developing and implementing lighter components and 
natural materials, we directly reduce the impact of emission to environ-
ment. We also keep working on increasing the share of recycled raw 
materials which are environmentally more acceptable. In addition, the 
reduction of impact on the environment is achieved with continuous 
improvements of the product design as well as optimisation of the pro-
duction process.

purchase of equipment and research and development activities with 
sgd otqonrd ne rhfmhǐb`mskx hloqnuhmf sgd dwhrshmf sdbgmnknfhb`k o`hms-
ing process and development of painted vehicle interiors as a new man-
ufacturing niche. 

In 2017, we invested 34 million HRK into a new project “Pilot Paint-
ing Line for Industrial Research, Development and Innovation”, which 
should be a growth generator in the mid-term period. A grant was ap-
proved from the European Regional Development Fund intended for the 
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Research and Development

Composite Materials

Recycling Materials

Composite materials are one of the alternatives 
to conventional materials and play a major im-
pact on the reduction of the vehicle weight. They 

cdlnmrsq`sd dwsqdldkx fnnc oqnodqshdr ne rodbhǐb 
rsqdmfsg `mc qhfhchsx `mc rl`kkdq rodbhǐb fq`uhsx- 
During this reporting period, we have continually 

worked on research and development of 
applying materials for thermoformed prod-

ucts in interior and exterior, all aimed at 
reducing their weight and imple-

mentation possibilities 
in future periods.

AD Plastik Group offers 
solutions to its custom-
ers which are in accord-
ance with the global 

trends and requirements 
of the automotive industry.

Recycling has a great potential in reducing environ-
mental impact of our products and conserving re-
sources. Apart from recycling products at the end 
of their life cycle, we draw attention to recycling raw 
materials and materials, use of high-quality recycled 
materials in processes and reducing environmental 
impact when developing new products. In cooper-
ation with its customers, AD Plastik Group selects 
materials with as large a share of recycled materi-

al as possible or natural materials. We constantly 
check for possibilities of using such materials so 
that each individual product at the end of its life cy-
cle would be as recyclable as possible.

To reduce the environmental impact upon the expiry 
of the product life cycle, we are working on improv-
ing the possibility of their recycling. 

Innovation in 2017

In 2017, we launched several activities for intro-
ducing new and enriching existing technologies all 
aimed at increasing innovation and development 
and cost competitiveness of our products.

Hot Stamping technology enables decorating very 
complex injection moulded parts of vehicle exte-
riors and interiors whereby using multilayer foils 
whose use reduces the application of environmen-
tally more aggressive chrome plating technology. 

With the MuCell technology, i.e. the technology of 
injecting polymers, in addition to using expanding 

agents and with appropriate technological mould-
ing, a product is achieved with required mechanical 
properties and shorter production time. It is impor-
tant to note that during the product moulding engi-
neer calculation methods are used, by applying the 
ǐmhsd,dkdldms ldsgnc `hldc `s ltkshokd oqnctbs 
optimisation. 

In addition, we keep enhancing technologies for 
joining components of various materials, various 
ǐmhrghmfr vhsg sgd naidbshud ne hmbqd`rhmf sdbgmhb`k 
and decorative possibilities, such as various welding 
types and two-component gluing.
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Technologies and Products

Major Projects in 2017 per Technologies

Additional technologies used in projects 
during 2017 

Technologies in 2017 Projects

During the reporting period, a total of 74 projects 
were active, two of which were general-purpose 
projects, while the remaining projects were devel-
noldms oqnidbsr- Sgd ǐftqd ne 63 oqnidbsr ld`mr 
creating 405 tools, 160 devices, 262 controllers and 
28 Onj` xnjdr 'cduhbdr enq uhrt`k bnmsqnk ne ǐm`k 
product components). During the year, 26 project 
were completed, and 33 new projects were started, 
so that a total of 48 projects were active on 31 De-
cember 2017. More than two thirds of these projects 
were realised by using the injection pressing tech-
nology, demonstrated in the illustration.

coloured external spoilers project for Renault Clio is 
`krn hmsdqdrshmf rhmbd sgd ronhkdqr `qd ǐqrs hmidbshnm 
lntkcdc+ sgdm o`hmsdc `mc ǐmhrgdc ax fkthmf vhsg 
2K adhesive with thermal activation.

Regarding the thermoforming technology, we would 
single out the carpet project for the Renault Group 
salons which are manufactured at the AD Plastik 
Group facilities in Kaluga, Russia. 

During the reporting period, two blowing technolo-
gy projects were completed in Mladenovac, the Alfa 
Romeo and Maserati projects which are special for 

One of the most distinguished projects in the peri-
od considered, which is in a large part represented 
by the injection pressing technology, is the new Re-
nault Clio model. For this project, we have been in-
dependently creating 26 tools, among which, tools 
of front and rear bumpers. The grab handle project 
for Volkswagen vehicles should also be mentioned 
since it is a synergy of injection pressing technology 
and assembly..

Regarding the painting technology, we would like 
to single out the Smart exterior painting due to the 
particularity demonstrated in the possibility of per-
sonalising the vehicle with a two-colour body. The 

belonging to the luxury vehicle segment, although 
they are non-aspect products.

The largest extrusion project, i.e. static seals for Re-
nault Group vehicles, was started late last year. 

In 2017, we should also emphasise the application of 
a new additional technology of hot-stamping, more 
accurately, transferring foil on a surface at high tem-
peratures. This technology is used in two projects, 
i.e. Renault Twingo exterior and interior projects.

100% 100%

Injection moulding...........68%
Extrusion...........................10%
Thermoforming................10%
Painting...............................7%
Blow moulding...................5%

Hot-stamping....................57%
Gluing................................10%
Chroming..........................10%
Pad print..............................9%
Welding...............................9%
Milling..................................5%
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Passenger vehicles in Europe (mil.)

Markets and Sales

European Union + Serbia

Last year, the car sales in the EU hit a record sale in 
the last ten years. The economic growth has obvi-
ously gained back the consumers’ trust, and better, 
more beautiful and interesting vehicles of world-re-
nowned manufacturers that encourage demand 
also helped.  The number of newly registered vehi-
cles increased by 3.3 percent, and there were 15.6 
lhkkhnm ne sgdl hm 1/06- Sgdrd `qd sgd ghfgdrs ǐf-
ures since the record year of 2007, when 16 million 
vehicles were registered. 

It is interesting that the sales in England dropped by 
5.7 percent, which was certainly largely affected by 
Brexit, while at the same time all EU Member States 
witness a large increase. The largest increase is 
found in Italy with 7.9 percent, then Spain with 7.7 
percent, followed by France with 4.7 percent and 
Germany with 2.7 percent. It is interesting to em-
og`rhrd sgd rhfmhǐb`ms hmbqd`rd hm nsgdq DT Ldladq 
States of up to 12 percent. 

The Renault Group sales, supported with the 12 
percent increase in Dacia, increased by 6.7 percent. 
Alfa Romeo increased its sales by 30 percent and 
thus contributed to the 5.2 percent increase of the 
FCA Group. Some of the most popular sports vehi-
cles in the year considered were as follows: Renault 
Captur, Logan Stepway, Peugeot 5008, Citroen C3 
Aircross and Alfa Romeo Stelvio. 

Volkswagen is still the largest car manufacturer in 
Europe and its share of the market is 23.6 percent. 
Their sales increased by 2.1 percent. However, the 
changes occurred with the runner-ups, and thus 
PSA Group with 15 percent leapfrogged Renault 
Group with 12.7 percent of share, primarily on ac-

count of good choice of new PSA Group models and 
acquisition of Opel. They are followed by Ford with 
6.2 percent, FCA Group with 5.5 percent and Toyota 
with 4.5 percent. In 2018, the growth is expected to 
subside, but still an increase in the sales of all vehi-
cles is anticipated compared to 2017.

During 2018, on the Serbian market, a decision on 
manufacturing a new FCA Group vehicle is expect-
ed.
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Markets and Sales

Currently in production:	 air ducts, grab handles, vehicle chassis protection, painted 
components

Technologies:	 blow moulding, injection moulding, painting

Sales Market:	 Serbia, Italy, Poland, Mexico, Brazil, USA, India

Nominations won in 2017:	 grab handles extension for Jeep Compass model

Currently in production:	 wheel arch liners, vehicle chassis protection, injected 
exterior components

Technologies:	 injection moulding

Sales Market:	 Germany, Spain, Romania, Russia, Turkey

Nominations won in 2017:	 bumper parts and decorative shells for mudguard pro-
tector and sills of Ford Focus Active vehicles, inner wheel 
arch liners for Ford Mondeo Panther vehicles

FCA

Ford

Customer's list is made in alphabetical order.

Currently in production:	 door panels

Technologies:	 injection moulding, UV welding

Sales Market:	 Slovenia

Grupo Antolin

Currently in production:	 front light housings

Technologies: 	 injection moulding, assembly

Sales Market:	 Slovenia

Nominations won in 2017:	 light housings for Volvo V43X

Hella

Currently in production: 	 grab handles, glass run channels, speaker brackets, 
screens, camera brackets, camera cover and extractor 

Technologies: 	 injection moulding and extrusion

Sales Market:	 France, Spain, Czech Republic, Slovakia, Argentina, Brazil, 
China, Russia

Nominations won in 2017: 	 camera brackets and covers, screens, air extractors and 
glass run channels for a number of Group vehicles

PSA Group

Currently in production:	 instrument panel, steering wheel trims, gear shift and 
handbrake consoles

Technologies: 	 injection moulding, UV welding

Sales Market:	 Slovenia, France

Reydel

European Union + Serbia
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Markets and Sales

Currently in production:	 painted exteriors, injection moulded components, motor 
fans, headliner coverings, painted and unpainted decora-
tive trims, all exterior spare parts and grab handles 

Technologies:	 injection moulding, painting, thermoforming of headliners 
(assembly)

Sales Market:	 Slovenia, France, Spain, Korea

Nominations won in 2017:	 front and rear bumpers with components, internal wheel 
arch housings, painted external spoilers, instrument pan-
els and door panels for Clio, front bumpers with compo-
nents and internal wheel arch housings for Smart (Edison 
phase2)

Currently in production:	 weatherstrip seals and grab handles

Technologies:	 extrusion, injection moulding and installation

Sales Market:	 Germany

Nominations won in 2017:	 weatherstrip seals for Audi Q3

Renault Group

VW Group

Customer's list is made in alphabetical order.

Currently in production:	 headliner trims, sunroof parts

Technologies: 	 injection moulding and painting

Sales Market:	 Germany, Slovakia

Webasto

Currently in production:	 sunvisors and headliners, carpets

Technologies: 	 injection moulding, thermoforming

Sales Market:	 Romania

Dacia

European Union + Serbia

Euro APS, JV Romania
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Markets and Sales

Russia

After four consecutive years of drop in vehicle sales 
on the Russian market, where the market was cut in 
g`ke+ sgd xd`q 1/06 ǐm`kkx aqhmfr ` cntakd chfhs r`kdr 
growth of almost 12 percent. According to pub-
lished data, 1,595,737 new vehicles were registered 
in the period considered. In December, the sales of 
new cars and light commercial vehicles increased 
by 14 percent compared to the same period in the 
previous year. In spite of a weak start in January 
and February, during the year, the sales increased by 
12 percent. The Russian market is facing a long re-
covery road before it returns to its old position, but 
the most important step in that direction is made. 
All key car manufacturers in Russia increased their 
r`kdr+ vghkd sgd lnrs rhfmhǐb`ms @C Ok`rshj btrsnl-
ers experience faster growth than the market aver-
age. VAZ, thus has an increase of 17 percent, while 
Renault has an increase of 16 percent. With regards 
to the ruble stabilisation and the rise in oil prices, 
further market growth of 14,5 percent is forecast for 
2018.  

Passenger and LCV vehicles in Russia (mil.)
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Markets and Sales

Currently in production:	 injection moulded exterior positions and trunk shelves

Technologies:	 injection moulding and thermoforming

Sales Market:	 Russia

Currently in production:	 headliners, carpets, injection moulded interior and exterior 
positions, trunk shelves

Technologies:	 thermoforming, injection moulding

Sales Market:	 Russia

Won nominations in 2017: 	 LJC auxiliary wheel insulations

Currently in production:	 injection moulded exterior positions

Technologies:	 injection moulding

Sales Market:	 Russia

Won nominations in 2017: 	 injection moulded wheel housing for Kodiaq, cooling fan 
motor brackets for Polo and Rapid, door housing grab 
handles

PCMA (Peugeot Citroen Mitsubishi Automotive)

Renault 

Volkswagen 

Customer's list is made in alphabetical order.Russia

Currently in production:	 headliners

Technologies:	 thermoforming

Sales Market:	 Russia

Won nominations in 2017:	 injection moulded interior positions for Ford Kuga vehicle

Currently in production:	 headliners, static seals

Technologies:	 thermoforming and extrusion

Sales Market:	 Russia

Currently in production:	 injection moulded exterior positions

Technologies:	 injection moulding

Sales Market:	 Russia

Won nominations in 2017: 	 injection moulded trims for Qashqai vehicle

Ford 

GM-VAZ 

Nissan

Currently in production:	 headliners, carpets, injection moulded interior and exterior 
positions, static seals, air ducts

Technologies:	 thermoforming, injection moulding and extrusion

Sales Market:	 Russia

Won nominations in 2017:	 Injected protection for vehicle chassis for new Logan, 
Sandero and X-Ray (VAZ manufacturer)

AvtoVAZ
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Business Risks

Operative Risks Legislation Risks

Operative risk is the risk of losses arising from inad-
equate procedures and failed internal processes, hu-
l`m e`bsnq+ rxrsdl `mc dwsdqm`k dudmsr- Ax deǐbhdms 
management of operative risks, better security (of 
employees, assets) is achieved, awareness is raised 
on the importance of existing procedures and/or 
creating new procedures, control of key indicators 
which need to be introduced and systematically 
lnmhsnqdc+ vghbg hm sgd dmc rhfmhǐb`mskx hloqnudr 
sgd nodq`shnm`k pt`khsx+ deǐbhdmbx `mc sq`mro`qdmbx-

We manage the operative risks through a devel-
oped process quality system whereby we develop 
deǐbhdms oqdudmshud rxrsdlr ne d`qkx cdsdbshnm ne 
operative risks and prevention of errors and weak-
nesses in processes, procedures, potential human 
errors and/or system errors as well as unpredicta-
ble external events. Aware of the risks of reliability 
of IT business solutions and business cyber safety, 
we continually work on improving, further devel-
oping and implementing of new technologies into 
everyday business operations. A special attention 
in this reporting period was paid to preparations for 
implementation of the General Data Protection Reg-
ulation (GDPR).

Vd `qd dwonrdc sn sgd qhrj ne bg`mfdr hm ǐrb`k `mc 
other regulations which can directly positively or 
negatively affect our competitiveness. During the 
last year, the income tax rate in Croatia was de-
creased from 20 to 18 percent, which improved the 
etstqd ǐm`mbh`k onrhshnm ne sgd Bnlo`mx- Vd `qd btq-
rently using the tax shield achieved in 2012, by way 
of investing into a new painting line in Zagreb, so 
that this measure did not have any affect in 2017. A 
new regulation was adopted in Russia, whereby ac-
cumulated losses from previous years can be used 
for covering only a half of the current base for calcu-
lating income tax, while according to the previous 
regulation, the accumulated losses could have been 
used for covering the entire base.

Business Risks (continued)

Political risk refers to all risks associated with a pos-
sible political instability in a certain country. The 
Company manages the political risks by operating 
in various countries, investing into opening of new 
markets and continuous monitoring of macroeco-
nomic and long-term market indicators. 

Risk of non fulfillment of contractual obliga-
tions

Automotive industry demands strict adherence to 
sgd cdǐmdc sdqlr ne cdkhudqx ne oqnctbsr hm `cchshnm 
to providing set high level of quality of ordered prod-
ucts. The Company is exposed to the risk of its sup-
okhdqr mnm etkǐkkhmf sgdhq bnmsq`bst`k nakhf`shnmr hm ` 
timely manner, which can then result in the Compa-
mx mns etkǐkkhmf hsr bnmsq`bst`k nakhf`shnmr hm ` shldkx 
l`mmdq snv`qcr sgd btrsnldq- E`hktqd sn etkǐk bnm-
tractual obligations can lead to loss of customers 
and negatively impact operating results. Therefore, 
rhfmhǐb`ms nodq`shnm`k `ssdmshnm `mc qdronmrhahkhsx 
hr fhudm sn sgd `bbtq`bx ne sgd etkǐkldms ne bnmsq`b-
tual obligations towards customers.

Technological risk

In order to meet the growing market requirements, 
the automotive industry is unavoidably focused on 
investing in the development of new products and 
new technologies in order to preserve and enhance 

the competitiveness of its products. Technology has 
a major role in added value, price and product quali-
ty Falling behind on technological development can 
reduce competitiveness and weaken the acquired 
market position, as well as reduce the chances of 
acquiring future business opportunities and con-
sequently adversely affect business results of the 
Company. The competition of car manufacturers on 
the market is stiff, so we continually monitor tech-
nological changes and invest into new technologies 
in order to maintain and increase our competitive-
mdrr- Sgd lnrs rhfmhǐb`ms sdbgmnknfhb`k bg`mfd 
in automobile production is certainly the increas-
ing presence of electric cars and the demand for 
lighter cars, which we do not see as a risk but as 
an opportunity, since such cars have more and more 
plastic parts inside them. There is, however, a risk 
associated with the use of materials from which we 
manufacture plastic parts, as they are obtained by 
processing fossil fuels. In response to this, in coop-
eration with customers, we are working on exploring 
the possibilities of using bioplastics that are fully 
obtained from renewable sources and biomass.
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Financial Statement 2017

Key Indicators Financial Position

Sgd sqdmc ne hloqnuhmf ǐm`mbh`k onrhshnm ne @C Ok`rshj Fqnto rshkk bnm-
tinues. Business growth was achieved in addition to further decrease in 
mds cdas `mc lnqd `eenqc`akd `udq`fd ǐm`mbhmf bnrs- Sgtr+ bnlo`qdc 
to 31 12/ 2016, credit indebtedness is lower by HRK 54.11 million which 
brought the NFD/EBITDA ratio to the level of 2.03. This opens the pos-
sibility of further capital investments and realising the potential acqui-
sition. 

Record sales in the last quarter of 2017 resulted in higher trade receiv-
ables by HRK 56.2 million compared to 31 12/ 2016, while the total pay-
ables were increased by HRK 28.3 million in the same period. Despite 
increased payables, the debt ratio in 2017 was additionally lowered and 
on 31.12. 2017, it was 0.44.

In 2017, the Return on Equity (ROE) increased to 9.7 percent, which is 
sgd qdrtks ne ` rhfmhǐb`ms hmbqd`rd hm sgd Fqnto&r mds oqnǐs- Hm 1/05+ QND 
was 7.5 percent.

In 2017, ADPL-R-A share price increased by 22.54 percent, so that on 
31 12/ 2017, it was HRK 169.10, while CROBEX decreased by 7.62 per-
cent in the same period. On 31.12. 2017, the Company market capitalisa-
tion amounted to HRK 710.15 million. Dividend was paid in 2017, in the 
amount of HRK 8.5 per share.

AD Plastik Group AD Plastik d.d.

Indicators 2016 2017 Indeks 2016 2017 Indeks

Operating revenue (in thsd. of HRK) 935,750 1,090,140 116.50 717,876 834,654 116.27

Sales revenue (in thsd. of HRK) 913,383 1,069,061 117.04 701,423 817,682 116.57

NFD (in thsd. of HRK) 372,452 321,347 86.28 364,644 321,580 88.19

EBITDA (in thsd. of HRK) 135,855 158,434 116.62 83,427 91,155 109.26

NFD/EBITDA 2.74 2.03 4.37 3.53

EBITDA margin 14.52% 14.53% 11.62% 10.92%

Mds oqnǐs l`qfhm 5.31% 6.44% 5.34% 6.40%
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Financial Statement 2017

EU and Serbian market Russian market (subsidiaries)

In 2017, the EU and Serbia markets reported an op-
erating revenue of HRK 804.32 million. In the same 
period, the European market recorded an increase in 
sale of new cars by 3.3 percent compared to the pre-
vious year, while the AD Plastik factories in Croatia 
and Serbia recorded an increase of 14.45 percent. 
Operating revenue share from these markets in the 
total operating revenue of AD Plastik Group is 73.78 
percent in 2017.

Apart from the increase in the automotive mar-
ket, the start of mass production under contracted 
multi-annual works also contributed to the revenue 
growth. For example, Renault Clio vehicle, for which 
the mass production started in 2017, recorded a 
sales increase of 6.7 percent. Strong kuna com-

pared to euro still has a negative impact on revenue 
from this market, so that revenue in the parent com-
pany reduced by HRK 7.4 million compared to the 
previous year.

Ctqhmf 1/06+ ` rhfmhǐb`ms mtladq ne mdv bnmsq`bsr 
was concluded for this market whose mass pro-
duction was planned for 2018 and 2019. This will 
bnlokdsdkx ǐkk sgd b`o`bhshdr ne e`bsnqhdr hm Bqn`-
tia and Serbia, which will require additional invest-
ments into capacity increase. The total value of new 
agreed work in 2017 for this market surpasses EUR 
134 million.

After four consecutive years of drop in car sales on 
the Russian market, 2017 records a much anticipat-
ed increase in sales of almost 12 percent or more 
accurately, 1.6 million vehicles were sold. Such a 
market trend encourages and supports forecast of 
growth in this market of an average 6,5 percent in 
the next four years. Revenue of AD Plastik Group 
in the Russian market increased by 22.67 percent 
in the period considered, compared to the previous 
year. This is largely a contribution of the growth in 
the sales of key vehicles for which AD Plastik deliv-
ers parts such as Alijansa Renault/Nissan/AvtoVAZ. 
Consequently, the share in operating revenue from 
the Russian market recorded an increase and in re-
lation to the total operating revenue of the Group, it 
is 26.22 percent.

As previously stated, the strong ruble also has the 
positive influence on consolidated revenue from the 

Russian market compared to euro when converted 
to kuna, if compared to the previous year. The influ-
ence of the weakened ruble in the second part of 
2017 was mitigated by using the natural hedging, i.e. 
by constant adjustment of sales objectives with our 
business partners in Russia.

Since the automotive industry in Russia has just 
started awakening after a long crisis, it will take 
some time before the sales level of 2.8 million ve-
hicles from 2012 is reached. The value of new con-
tracted work of AD Plastik Group for the Russian 
market in 2017 amounts to EUR 17 million, while 
mdv `mc lnqd rhfmhǐb`ms oqnidbsr hm sghr l`qjds 
are yet expected. Until then, the market increase is 
mostly generated by the increase in sales of existing 
vehicle models. 

Investments 2017

In the previous year, AD Plastik Group invested HRK 
86.1 million and largely into expanding its capacities, 
purchase of new machines and intangible assets. 

The planned investment of HRK 34 million kuna into 
the “Pilot Painting Line for Industrial Research, De-
velopment and Innovation” project in Zagreb was 
realised, which strengthens the portfolio of painted 
products. For this project, a grant of HRK 19.6 mil-
lion was given.

58













Stakeholders

The stakeholders of AD Plastik Group are all individuals, groups, or-
ganisations and companies that have, or can have, a significant in-
terest in the success or failure of the company. Since various groups 
of stakeholders have various interests, the manner of communica-
tion with individual stakeholders depends on their needs. Our goal is 
to ensure transparent and regular communication with all stakehold-
ers as the foundation of mutual understanding and, consequently, to 
ensure progress and development of the company.

It is very important to us that we understand the needs of our stake-
holders, so we work on their inclusion and interconnectedness on an 
ongoing basis. 

We try to involve certain stakeholders as actively as possible in the 
preparation of the Sustainability Report of the company, although 
customers, as one of our most important stakeholders, are actively 
involved from the very beginning of reporting. Since the Sustainabil-
ity Report must fulfil the standards of sustainable development of 
certain customers, large part of the Sustainability Report is based 
on regular counselling with customers. AD Plastik Group has an 
agreement or guidelines on conformity with the rules of socially re-
sponsible conduct in the automotive industry with most customers. 
Occasional counselling and meetings are the most frequent form of 
inclusion for most stakeholders. This year we conducted our first 
survey amongst a segment of our stakeholders concerning the Sus-
tainability Report. We involved employees, suppliers, partners, finan-
cial and educational institutions, associations, local communities 
and institutions. 

With a view to identifying topics and their perceived importance in 
the eyes of stakeholders and, consequently, adjusting the content of 
the report that will justify their expectations and needs, we conduct-
ed a survey on 57 stakeholders from various groups.

According to AD Plastik Group's business development 
strategy, its key stakeholders are:

•• customers
•• employees
•• trade unions
•• suppliers and partners
•• owners and shareholders
•• financial public
•• local and central government
•• community (universities, associations, organizations)
•• media. 

The most important stakeholders are at the same time part 
of AD Plastik Group's mission and vision.

Our goal in the future is to select a certain number of stakeholders 
from each group, so that through their inclusion and ongoing evalu-
ation of topics we gain better insight into what is truly important to 
certain groups of stakeholders, concerning which topics they wish 
to receive more information and, accordingly, in which segment they 
expect us to make improvements. 

We hold that the process of including stakeholders is very important, 
because their opinion greatly influences our operation, regardless 
whether they are investors, customers, employees, suppliers or any 
other stakeholders. We still have many unrealised ideas and room for 
improvement as well as development of their inclusion ahead of us.

Our customers regularly examine our sustainable operation via the 
EcoVadis agency and, more recently, Achilles Automotive, while the 
first audits of our socially responsible operation at our locations 
were conducted by the Intertek agency.
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Stakeholders 

Owners and shareholders The financial public

Types of counselling and frequency 

•• Mnshǐb`shnmr 'vgdmdudq mdbdrr`qx(
•• Financial statements (quarterly)
•• Shareholders' assembly (annually)
•• Neǐbh`k vdarhsd 'qdftk`qkx(
•• Communication via e-mail (whenever necessary)
•• @mmt`k ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr '`mmt`kkx(
•• Sustainability report (annually)

Types of counselling and frequency 

•• Neǐbh`k vdarhsd 'qdftk`qkx(
•• Mnshǐb`shnmr 'vgdmdudq mdbdrr`qx(
•• Communication via e-mail (whenever neces-

sary)
•• Financial statements (quarterly)
•• @mmt`k ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr `mc qdonqs 

(annually)
•• Sustainability report (annually)
•• Road show (annually)

All shareholders of the company together 
are the owner of the joint-stock company. 
Shareholders are a particularly important 
public segment, so it is our aim to perma-
nently improve communications with share-
holders and to build relations based on 
mutual trust. Regular and transparent pub-
khb`shnm ne neǐbh`k mnshǐb`shnmr nm sgd vda-
site of the company serves to present all 
rhfmhǐb`ms btqqdms `bshuhshdr hmsdmcdc enq `kk 
shareholders. Thus, shareholders can learn 
about new contracts, which ensures secu-
rity and trust in the future of the Group and 
continued growth of the company's value.

The long-term strategy is always aimed at 
increasing the satisfaction of shareholders 
and at the payment of a regular incentive 
dividend. 

Sgd ǐm`mbh`k otakhb bnmrhrsr ne hmudrsnqr 
and creditors as important stakeholders 
of AD Plastik Group, with whom they have 
a partnership relationship based on timely 
and transparent reporting. The goal of the 
company is to inform said stakeholders 
about all major events in the Group, so that 
the decisions they make might be based on 
accurate information in real time.

Bnmshmtdc `cu`mbdldms `mc hloqnudldms ne ǐm`m-
cial reporting, regular communication, and sending 
ne mnshǐb`shnmr sn rg`qdgnkcdqr vdqd vnqjhmf oqhnqh-
ties during the reporting period. 

Nmfnhmf vnqj nm hloqnuhmf sgd v`x ne ǐm`mbh`k qd-
porting aims to increase transparency and to inform 
stakeholders regularly and timely about all relevant 
information that might be useful to them in creat-
ing a comprehensive picture about the company 
and about the adoption of decisions concerning the 
company.. 
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Stakeholders 

The community  

Types of counselling and frequency 

•• Participation at conferences (whenever 
necessary)

•• Membership (regularly)
•• Visits (whenever necessary)
•• Sustainability report (annually)

As part of the corporate culture of a com-
pany that builds new business standards, 
co-operation and partnership with the com-
munity are very important to us. In order to 
raise the quality of business and life in the 
community, we regularly take part in the ex-
change of knowledge, projects, ideas, and 
initiatives that can help us in our endeav-
ours. Representatives of the company reg-
ularly participate at conferences, fora, and 
round tables, and we also develop regular 
co-operation with the academic communi-
ty. 

We encourage the employment of the local 
population and we support various voca-
tional and civil associations. 

We support local initiatives and associa-
tions through donations and sponsorships.

In 2017, representatives of AD Plastik Group attend-
ed and participated in a series of economic events 
concerning the topic of competitiveness, export, 
lnmds`qx onkhbx+ rnbh`kkx qdronmrhakd nodq`shnm+ ǐ-
nancial business and corporate governance.

•• "Lightness of Business in RC", a panel discus-
sion within the framework of the conference 
entitled "Croatia—A Country Desirable for Busi-
ness?, which was attended by the President of 
the Management Board, Marinko Došen. 

•• The conference entitled "Challenges of Croatian 
Diplomacy" that included a round table with 
Marinko Došen, President of the Management 
Board of the company.

•• "New Challenges for Croatia—Improving the 
Business Climate and Attracting Investments" 
was a panel discussion within the international 
conference "The best FDI practices in Central 

and South Eastern Europe", which was attend-
ed by the President of the Management Board. 

•• !Atrhmdrr hm Bqn`sh` vhsg sgd DT Oqdǐw! v`r 
a panel discussion within the conference 
"Economic Growth in the EU", which was also 
attended by Marinko Došen.

•• "The Danger of the Return of Global Protec-
tionism" was a panel discussion as part of the 
fourth Lider's conference on export. It was 
attended by the member of the Management 
An`qc+ R`mi` Ahnɪhɤ-

•• "Four Years of the RC in the EU—How Success-

ful Were We?" was a panel discussion within 
the framework of the conference "Ahead of the 
Fifth Anniversary of Croatia's Membership of 
sgd Dtqnod`m Tmhnm!+ `ssdmcdc ax Yni` Bqmdɪjh+ 
advisor for relations with state institutions and 
funds.
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Stakeholders 

In the reporting period, there was a number of ac-
tivities relating to the co-operation of the econom-
ic and academic community, professional practice, 
community visits within the Group's factories, visits 
of company representatives to fairs, and participa-
tion at the college career days. In 2017, we had 11 
visits to Group locations, during which students had 
an opportunity to learn a bit more about the opera-
tion of the company and its departments. Students 
and professors from various parts of Croatia, Ger-
many, and America visited factories in Croatia. The 
Russian factory in Vintai organised an Open Day for 
students.

We presented AD Plastik Group at business fairs in 
Split, Zagreb, and Mladenovac, but also at the inter-
m`shnm`k rbhdmshǐb bnmedqdmbd !Ldbg`mhb`k Sdbg-
nologies and Structural Materials—MTSM 2017" in 
Split. Further, we presented our experiences with 
recruitment at open days for engineering colleges. 

We recognise the importance of our role in the com-
munity in which we do business, so we support ad-
justments to education in line with the needs on the 
labour market. AD Plastik Vintai organised an action 
entitled "Our Forest" at which they collected used 
paper. The funds were used to buy seedlings to re-
populate forests in the Samara Oblast that were dev-
`rs`sdc hm sgd ǐqdr ne 1/00- 

Vd `ssdmcdc sgd ǐqrs rdrrhnm ne sgd Dbnmnlhb En-
rum as part of the day of the Faculty of Electrical 
Engineering, Mechanical Engineering and Naval Ar-
chitecture in Split. As part of the day of the Faculty 
of Mechanical Engineering and Naval Architecture 
of the University of Zagreb, we presented two of its 
best students with a cash prize.

We were included in the project entitled "Experience 
is Worth More than Gold" that provides students 
with a lower socio-economic status and students 
with disability with an opportunity to work as train-
ees. 

We co-operate with junior and senior year students 
in drawing up their graduation theses. In 2017, the 
result were seven theses, drawn up with the help of 
a mentor from our company. At the same time, our 
bnlo`mx gdkodc sgqdd ǐm`k xd`q rdbnmc`qx rbgnnk 
students to prepare their theses.

We received a recognition for excellent co-operation 
at the ceremony of the Day of Teaching Bases of the 
University in Split. We are proud of our mentors who 
selflessly relay their knowledge, experience, and 
skills to students.

The community (continued)
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Aware of the fact that people are the most important resource of the 
company, we hold that the development of human resources is one 
of our priorities. The Human Resources Management Strategy is one 
of the key levers for achieving business goals. Its component parts 
are based on the business strategy of the company. It is aimed at 
more effective and efficient human resources management, and it 
includes the revision, adjustment, and organisation of the organisa-
tional infrastructure as the basis for quality implementation of mod-
ern systems, subsystems or tools for human resources management. 
Through their implementation, we change the company culture and 
value system oriented towards effective and efficient conduct of all 
employees. We, thus, create foundations for long-term success of 
the company with an encouraging climate in which employees real-
ise their set goals in a competent, motivated, and engaged fashion.

We manage careers of key employees, set annual interview systems 
(GURU), and adjust our reward systems via well-defined require-
ments for work posts through the "map of competencies" in accord-
ance with optimum and efficient operation of key business process-
es. 

The power of our company lies in the exceptional expertise of em-
ployees and their commitment to the realisation of business goals. 
Teams of people with different age, nationality, gender, education, 
and walk of life are our driving energy. The relationship towards em-
ployees is based on the principles of equal opportunities and respect 
of diversity, while investments in education and professional de-
velopment of employees are our strategic guideline. We encourage 
personal and professional development within the group and devel-
op and implement various educational programmes and education 
courses. 

We recognised global changes in the demographic structure of 
the labour force as one of the guidelines for introducing improve-
ments in diversity management in AD Plastik Group. In the future, 
we expect an increase in the share of employees in the age group 
45–65. Older employees are a significant and valuable component 
of the labour force, because they are characterised by smaller rates 
of absentism, fluctuation, and accidents at work, greater experience 
and efficiency as well as greater ability to assume mentor roles. Via 
continued and planned recruitment of young people, we ensure that 
company knowledge is maintained and that the business environ-
ment of generational diversity is developed.

Employees

Diversity of employees in the company strengthens the innovative 
capacity and releases the potential of employees, thus directly con-
tributing to their business success. Therefore, in our company we 
encourage diversity in all activities, actions, and programmes.

On 31 December 2017, AD Plastik Group employed the total of 2,386 
persons (1,321 in Croatia, 233 in Serbia, 826 in Russia, and six in Slo-
venia). The greatest share of employees works in Croatia. Most em-
ployees are between 30 and 35 years of age, both women and men.

The number of employees in the company for several years in a row 
shows that a stable number of employees is maintained.
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as on 31/12/2017 Subject to contract:

employed in 
total

share 2017
State location indefinite term fixed term

temporary and 
occasional em-

ployment

Croatia Solin, Zagreb 964 357 10 1321 56.25%

Serbia Mladenovac 175 58  233 8.11%

Slovenia Novo Mesto 6 0  6 0.28%

Russia
Kaluga 223 0 0 223 10.80%

Vintai 603 0 2 603 24.56%

Total 1971 415 12 2386

Number of employees of ADP Group by region and type of employment 







Employees 

In the total structure of employees by gender in 2017, women account for 47.44 percent, 
vghkd ldm `bbntms enq 41-45 odqbdms- Sgdqd vdqd mn rhfmhǐb`ms bg`mfdr hm sgd rsqtbstqd ne 
employees by gender in comparison to the previous reporting period.

Support to further improvements of social dialogue and good relations with employees continues in this reporting period. Col-
lective negotiations with trade unions were conducted and a new collective agreement in Croatia as well as amendments to the 
collective agreement in Vintai were concluded. The collective agreements apply to all employees in Croatia and to employees of 
the factory in Vintai in Russia, which includes 80.60 percent of employees of AD Plastik Group. The rights and obligations of other 
employees are set out in various ordinances in accordance with legislation.  
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Gender structure of employees of AD Plastik Group in  
2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017
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Environment

Materials (continued)

Recycled incoming material (t)

Percentage of material used that is recycled incoming material (%)

Material Location 2015 2016 2017

PP/PE/PES (t)

Solin 1,349 1,352 1,910

Zagreb 896 317 795

Mladenovac 28 110 25

Vintai 240 219 260

Kaluga 128 97 110

TOTAL 2,641 2,095 3,100

Material Location 2015 2016 2017

PP/PE/PES (t)

Solin 40 44.36 41.98

Zagreb 15 6.17 11.65

Mladenovac 3 8.83 3.20

Vintai 4 11.38 9.84

Kaluga 10 6.92 6.58

TOTAL 15 16.42 18.83

  Material used by weight or quantity

Material Location 2015 2016 2017

PP/PE/PES (t)

Solin 3,379 3,048 4,549

Zagreb 5,965 5,140 6,823

Mladenovac 1,097 1,246 780

Vintai 2,319 1,925 2,641

Kaluga 1,239 1,403 1,671

TOTAL 13,999 12,762 16,464

Paint, varnish, solvents (t)

Zagreb 223 242 321

Mladenovac 394 231 290

Vintai 10 6.8 8.5

Kaluga 1 0.2 15.3

TOTAL 628 480 634.8
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Taking care of the environment we work in is a part of our strategy and 
our Environmental Policy. We are aware of the unfortunate fact that the 
supply of drinking water, one of the most important natural resourc-
es, keeps diminishing, leaving in its wake permanent and negative ef-
fects on the environment. Our production sites are mostly supplied with 
drinking water from the local water supply system, whereas a smaller 
part of our on-site supply comes from our well at the Zagreb site. In 
accordance with water protection legislation, all of our sites have all the 
required water-related permits and documents. In all production sites, 
water is used for sanitary and technological needs. Process water is 
used for:

•• Machine cooling (cooling water is not drained into the sewerage 
rxrsdl rhmbd hs bhqbtk`sdr hm ` bknrdc rxrsdl `mc fdsr qdǐkkdc `r 
needed);

•• Water curtain in the process of applying paints and lacquers at the 
Zagreb paint facility (a closed recirculating system in which water 
hr qdǐkkdc `r mddcdc(:

•• Gtlhchǐb`shnm ne `hq rtookhdc sn sgd Y`fqda o`hms e`bhkhsx-

For each production site, the water consumption and the status of the 
water supply system is monitored by the technical service. Everyday 
activities performed by the service are described in internal procedures 
and operating instructions in order to ensure a smooth production pro-
cess. According to the ISO 14001 standard requirements, water con-
sumption is one of recognised aspects of environmental protection. We 
assess the individual impact of various aspects on the environment at 
least once per year in accordance with the following criteria:

•• Compliance with statutory regulations and other mandatory 
requirements;

•• Complaints from the citizens, local administration, and from 
workers;

•• Potential risks and event probability;
•• Aspect impact on operating costs.

Ctqhmf sgd qdonqshmf odqhnc+ v`sdq v`r qdbnfmhrdc `r ` rhfmhǐb`ms `r-
odbs `s sgd Rnkhm rhsd+ vgdqd ctqhmf sgd ǐqrs entq lnmsgr `m hmbqd`rd 
of 59,31 percent of consumption had been recorded, compared to the 
same reporting period last year. The increase had been caused by an 
on-site pipeline rupture, which was afterwards repaired. Waste water 
is not recycled in our production facilities, and water consumption is 
measured directly on the water meter.

The water consumption of AD Plastik Group does not have an adverse 
effect on water and the aquatic ecosystem of the area in which we op-
erate. The amount of water we use does not endanger the capacities 
of local water wells. The Solin site receives its supply of water from the 
source of the Jadro River, with 9.0 m3/s of capacity; the Zagreb site 
from the Zagreb internal water supply system, with 4.5 m3/s of capaci-
ty; the Mladenovac site from Mladenovac internal water supply system 
that pumps water from artesian wells (55 wells), the capacity of which 
is 2-5 l/s per well; the Vintai site from the well in Vintai, with 1.5 m3/s; 
and the Kaluga site from Kaluga internal water supply system, with 180 
m3/h.

The table shows the amount of water consumed per source in 2017. 
Savings were achieved at the Mladenovac and Vintai sites due to a 
closed cooling system that was installed (injection moulding and ther-
moforming facilities) and due to the replacement of the water meters.  

Water

Environment

Water consumption per source (m3)

Consumption of water from public water supply (m3) Consumption of water from private well (m3)

Location 2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017

Solin 27,184 33,705 41,305 0 0 0

Zagreb 14,134 9,547 10,915 5,713 5,445 8,176

Mladenovac 11,975 11,584 4,691 0 0 0

Vintai 13,296 8,035 5,949 0 0 0

Kaluga 4,269 3,074 3,194 0 0 0

TOTAL 70,858 65,945 66,054 5,713 5,445 8,176
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Air emissions affect our environmental and economic impact and we 
are aware of adverse effects they may have on the environment as well 
as on our business activity. Therefore, an important segment of our 
business is air emission management. Activities related to this topic 
are carried out and coordinated through systems implemented within 
the Group, such as the system for quality, environmental protection and 
energy management. All activities are in compliance with national envi-
ronmental protection legislation as well as related international stand-
ards. The system effectiveness is regularly assessed and evaluated by 
AD Plastik Group management, and, on the basis of results, it adopts 
proposed objectives for the following period. 

Air emissions include the following:
•	 CO2 emissions;
•	 Emissions of ozone depleting substances (ODS);
•	 NO2, SO2, CO emissions;
•	 Emissions of volatile organic compounds (VOC). 

Direct emissions of greenhouse gases shown in the table result from 
the combustion of energy products used in boiler rooms, such as fuel 
nhk `mc m`stq`k f`r+ `mc ctd sn bnmrtloshnm ne khptdǐdc nhk f`r enq enqj-
lift operations. Indirect emissions shown in the table result from the 
production of electricity purchased from distributors, which we use for 
machine and equipment operation in production facilities. The emis-
sions are measured directly according to monthly and yearly energy 
product consumption.  

Emissions

Environment

2015 2016 2017

Location
Direct greenhouse 

gas emissions 
according to mass 

Indirect greenhou-
se gas emissions 

according to mass 

Direct greenhouse 
gas emissions 

according to mass 

Indirect greenhou-
se gas emissions 

according to mass 

Direct greenhouse 
gas emissions 

according to mass 

Indirect greenhou-
se gas emissions 

according to mass 

Solin 276 2,594 243 2,542 283 2,226

Zagreb 1,425 3,796 1,445 3,505 1,526 3,003

Mladenovac 250 833 219 916 290 916

Vintai 750 2,787 512 1,584 546 1,724

Kaluga 21 954 10 964 251 934

TOTAL 2,722 10,964 2,429 9,511 2,896 8,803

* t CO2 - Emission data calculated according to national standard

Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions according to mass ( t CO2* )

Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions according to mass ( t CO2* )

2015 2016 2017

Direct greenhouse gas emissions 
according to mass

2,722 2,429 2,896

Indirect greenhouse gas emissi-
ons according to mass

10,964 9,511 8,803

TOTAL 13,686 11,940 11,699

Sgd lnrs rhfmhǐb`ms rsdo snv`qcr sgd qdctbshnm 
of greenhouse gas emissions in 2017 refers to the 
reduction of CO2 emissions due to the renewable 
energy supply. Other improvements during the ref-
erence period have been realised at the end of the 
year and their results will be observed in the follow-
ing period.
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Environment

Emissions (continued)

Other relevant emissions we measure are NO2, SO2, and CO, occurring 
due to heat generation. Air emissions are measured on stationary ex-
haust vents in compliance with the statutory regulations, annually or 
once every two years, depending on the power of the equipment used. 
On the paint line exhaust vent in Zagreb, we also measure emissions 
of volatile organic compounds (VOC) generated during the plastic part 
painting process.

In 2017, the measured values of emissions from stationary sources 
were in compliance with the statutory provisions. The reports on annu-
al emissions are regularly submitted to national competent authorities 
responsible for environmental protection. 

For the purpose of reducing the negative impact that volatile organic 
compounds in the paint line facility have on the environment, we use 
Regenerative Thermal Oxidizers (RTO) with heat output of 320 kW, and 
14,000 m3/h maximum capacity. It incinerates VOCs collected in coat-
ing and VOC volatilisation booths. The application of coatings is per-
formed in booths by robots, without human presence. The air circulates 
in booths, until a solvent content of 3 vol% is reached. The polluted air 
is then guided to the oxidizer that had previously been heated to 850 °C 
with a natural gas burner. When introducing polluted air to the cham-
adqr+ sgd UNB hr hmbhmdq`sdc `s sgd rodbhǐdc sdlodq`stqd+ `mc sgd atqm-
er is turned off. The process is automatic, and with VOC content below 

the flammability threshold (< 3 percent), the burner automatically turns 
on to maintain the prescribed flammability. The polluted air is guided 
to the oxidizer from the primer booth, the primer volatilisation area, the 
paint booth, the paint volatilisation area, the lacquer booth, the lacquer 
volatilisation area, and from the drying chamber. In 2017, the regenera-
tive oxidizer incinerated 140.566 t of VOC.

During the reporting period, due to increased use of organic solvents 
at the Zagreb site, we began reconstructing the paint line that was out 
of commission since 2015, due to obsolete equipment and exceeded 
VOC emission thresholds. The entire ventilation system, booths, and 

the paint application system have all been replaced. The polluted air is 
guided through the enclosed air circulation system to the regenerative 
thermal oxidizer (RTO). The heating, cooling, ventilation, compressed 
air, and gas installations for the lacquer facility, the workshop, and auxil-
iary facilities, have all been reconstructed. This investment will result in 
a lot of savings and improvements. 

NOx,SOx and other relevant air emissions according to type and mass (t)

2015 2016 2017

  NO2    SO2   CO   VOC    NO2    SO2     CO   VOC   NO2    SO2   CO VOC

Solin 0.095 1.000 0.080 0.000 0.005 0.015 0.000 0.000 0.025 0.060 0.150 0.000

Zagreb 1.255 0.000 0.950 17.060 1.004 0.000 0.000 5.200 1.340 0.000 0.092 5.812

Mladenovac 0.050 0.000 0.030 0.000 0.825 0.000 0.614 0.000 0.906 0.000 0.720 0.000

Vintai 4.523 0.024 0.427 0.000 4.523 0.024 0.427 0.000 4.523 0.024 0.427 0.000

Kaluga 0.018 0.009 5.191 0.000 0.001 0.000 0.266 0.000 0.001 0.000 0.266 0.000

TOTAL 5.941 1.033 6.678 17.060 6.358 0.039 1.307 5.200 6.795 0.084 1.655 5.812

Emission data calculated according to national standard
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Environment

Waste water and waste (continued)

The following representation shows data on the 
amounts of discharged waste water and its desti-
nation. The amounts of discharged water are not 
measured with water meters, but a record is kept 
on the amount of acquired sanitary water and the 
amount of water pumped from our own well, meas-
uring them directly on the water meter.

The waste generated in our production processes 
is handled in compliance with statutory provisions. 
The on-site waste is placed in containers according 
to its physical and chemical properties. Each type of 
v`rsd hr l`qjdc vhsg ` bk`rrhǐb`shnm mtladq `mc hsr 
name. The transport and the disposal of the waste 
is entrusted to licensed waste disposal companies, 
who regularly collect waste from our sites. The re-
cords on the produced waste and the waste deliv-
ered for disposal are kept in legally prescribed doc-
umentation, while the data on the amount of waste 
delivered for disposal is obtained by weighing, dur-
ing the delivery to licensed collectors.

Our production processes generate non-hazardous 
and hazardous waste. Non-hazardous waste refers 
to packaging waste (cardboard, plastic foil), wood 
packaging, plastic waste, scrap metal, and waste 
eqnl oqnbdrrdc sdwshkd ǐaqdr- G`y`qcntr v`rsd qd-
fers to waste paints and lacquers, waste solvents, 
waste sludge from paints and lacquers, packaging 
tainted with hazardous substances, electronic and 
electrical waste, waste oils, water sludge, separator 
sludge, waste printing cartridges, fluorescent tubes, 
`arnqadmsr+ ǐksdqhmf l`sdqh`kr+ fqd`rx q`fr+ `mc 
gloves.

In order to prevent the production of waste we im-
plemented the following measures:

•• In all of our sites we installed mills that grind 
unusable plastic products, and the produced 
fqntmc ok`rshb vd sgdm qdtrd hm sgd ǐm`k 
product; 

•• At the Zagreb site we distil a hazardous, 
organic, contaminated solvent and produce a 
pure organic solvent, which we then reuse in 
painting plastic products; 

•• We have signed a contract for the Solin and 
Zagreb sites with a company licensed for the 
disposal and cleaning of contaminated greasy 
rags, who then delivers them back for reuse.  

Objectives met in 2017:
•• Waste water quality testing was performed 

on all sites in accordance with water permit 
requirements; 

•• A three year water permit was obtained for the 
Mladenovac site;

•• The sewerage and the rainwater system have 
been tested for watertightness, as were the 
rainwater grids at the Solin site.

2015 2016 2017 Destination of discharged waste water

Solin 27,184 33,705 41,305 Adriatic Sea/Mediterranean Sea

Zagreb 5,336 4,346 5,015 Sava River/Danube River/Black Sea

Mladenovac 11,975 11,584 4,691 Veliki Lug River/Danube River/Black Sea

Vintai 13,296 8,035 5,949 Oka River/Volga River/Caspian Sea

Kaluga 4,269 3,074 3,194 Volga River/Caspian Sea

TOTAL 62,060 60,744 60,154

Amount of discharged water (m3) and its destination
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Environment

Environmental impact assessment of suppliers

Environmental impact assessment of suppliers is 
performed regularly once per year for the existing 
rtookhdqr+ `mc hr l`mc`snqx oqhnq sn sgd ǐm`k rdkdb-
tion of a new supplier.

One of the criteria for the selection of new suppli-
dqr hr sgd HRN 03//0 dmuhqnmldms`k bdqshǐb`sd- He 
sgd rtookhdq cndr mns gnkc sgd bdqshǐb`sd+ `mc he enq 
`mx qd`rnm vg`srndudq hs hr hlonrrhakd sn ǐmc ` qd-
placement supplier, he is audited according to the 
self-assessment questionnaire that contains ques-
tions from the environmental protection system. As 
a long term measure, the material supplier is asked 
to provide a schedule for introducing the environ-
mental protection system.

All new suppliers having an impact on the quality 
of our products have been evaluated according to 
the environmental impact criterion. Seven in total, 

or precisely 100 percent of all new suppliers, have 
been evaluated according to the environmental im-
pact criterion. Four of them have the ISO 14001 en-
uhqnmldms`k bdqshǐb`sd+ vghkd nsgdqr vdqd du`kt`sdc 
according to the questionnaire and received an A 
grade. 

Solin monitors 142 suppliers for environmental im-
pact, and all of them are evaluated annually. Their 
grades are recorded on the company's internal por-
tal. 

Mladenovac evaluates 20 suppliers according to the 
same criterion; Kaluga - 41; and Togliatti - 45 suppli-
ers. Within the reported period, there were no sup-
pliers with whom business relations had been termi-
nated due to a negative environmental impact, and 
none of them had been discovered as having a real 
or potential negative environmental impact.

AD Plastik d.d., Croatia

AD Plastik Kaluga, Russia

ADP, Mladenovac, Serbia 

AD Plastik Togliatti, Russia

ISO 14001 Questionnaire
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Environment

Environmental compliance

Environmental compliance is an inseparable part of 
our business policy. Eco-friendliness and environ-
mental awareness is evident from our adoption of 
the Environmental Management System according 
to the ISO 14001 standard, implemented in all of 
our sites. The implementation of this international 
standard allows us to design an Environmental Poli-
cy and set objectives.

Sgd oqnbdrr ne hcdmshǐb`shnm+ bnnqchm`shnm+ `mc 
implementation of statutory and other mandatory 
requirements as well as the related compliance as-
sessment, is performed in accordance with internal 
procedures. These are recorded in a document enti-
tled “Record of statutory regulations and other man-
datory requirements”. 

Sgd hcdmshǐdc qdftk`shnmr hmbktcd9
•• Current national regulations in countries we 

operate; 
•• Bkhdms qdptdrsr cdǐmdc hm bnmsq`bsr+ rs`mc`qcr+ 

protocols, and terms and conditions of supply;
•• National regulations in the country of the client 

or the country of distribution;
•• Provisions of the Council of the European 

Community.

The assessment procedure for the compliance with 
statutory and other mandatory requirements in 
force is performed at least once per year, and where 
appropriate, we revise it for the following reasons: 

•• Mdv oqnctbshnm oqnbdrrdr nq lnchǐb`shnmr ne 
the existing ones; 

•• New technologies, equipment, facilities, and 
objects; 

•• New replacement raw materials and supplies; 
•• Changes in the organisational structure;
•• New projects that generate new or changed 

working conditions; 
•• Changes in statutory regulations.

Solin

•• Supervision by the water protection 
inspection and the fire protection inspec-
tion agencies; 

•• External audit by Bureau Veritas accord-
ing to the ISO 14001 standard.

Zagreb

•• Supervision by inspection agencies for 
environmental protection, water protec-
tion, fire protection, occupational safety, 
health and safety, electricity installations, 
and for pressurised containers;

•• External audit by Intertek on behalf of 
AUDI AG for corporate social responsi-
bility;

•• External audit by Bureau Veritas accord-
ing to the ISO 14001 standard.     

The compliance with statutory regulations is monitored and measured through results contained in 
the reports of performed inspections and external audits as well as any potential complaints from 
clients or citizens. Activities in 2017 per site were as follows:

Mladenovac

•• Supervision by inspection agencies for 
environmental protection, water protec-
tion, fire protection, and for pressurised 
containers;

•• External audit by Bureau Veritas according 
to the ISO 14001 standard.

Vintai

•• External audit by Bureau Veritas according 
to the ISO 14001 standard.

Kaluga

•• External audit by Bureau Veritas according 
to the ISO 14001 standard.

During the supervision, there were no monetary or non-monetary sanctions due to non-compliance with laws 
and regulations. External audits found no evidence of non-compliance in this area, and there were no com-
plaints from clients or citizens in the reporting period. 
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Society

Recruitment (continued)

The indicators for the number of employees for the last two years suggest a positive recruitment trend in AD 
Plastik Group. In the reporting period, the number of our employees had increased, and on 31 12/ 2017 the 
Group had 2386 employees. 

Since projects require several years of preparation, which should be started much earlier for them to be suc-
cessfully carried out, in the reporting period we also started and continue recruitment. The selection pro-

cesses for engineering positions are conducted every year with the aim of transfer and retaining company 
knowledge. The number, age, gender and region of the organisation's new employees indicate a strategic 
`ooqn`bg sn ok`mmhmf sgd mtladq ne dloknxddr + `ahkhsx sn `ssq`bs cheedqdms pt`khǐdc dloknxddr+ `mc `m deenqs 
to optimally use the workforce and talent available in different regions. 

AD Plastik Group's employee trends between 2012 and 2017 Number of employees who joined or left AD Plastik Group in 2017, shown per month 

arrived left
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Awards

AD 5 model - rewarding excellence

The moto of the project is: “Let’s be excellent – let's change together”. 
We use the AD5 model of rewarding to recognize and reward outstand-
ing employees. A total of 264 awards were given out in 2017 at Solin and 
Zagreb sites. Those employees who stood out with their engagement, 
initiative and proactivity were proud to be awarded the AD5 award.

Monitoring performance - management by objectives

Rewarding employees at Russian sites is carried out with the help of a 
continuous process of management by objectives. Cascading organi-
sational objectives to employee objectives leads to more engagement 
eqnl dloknxddr+ `mc qdrtksr hm hmbqd`rdc oqnbdrr deǐbhdmbx `mc qd-
warding with bonuses. 

Ideas for improvement

We use the Ideas for improvement project to continuously encourage 
employees at all sites to make propositions and in this way participate 
in continuous improvement of products, processes and the organisa-
tion as a whole. An idea can be proposed by an individual or a team, 
and it doesn't matter whether it’s a big or smaller idea because idea 
implementation adds value to the company. We encourage and recog-
nise employees’ initiatives and creativity, which is why we rewarded 83 
employees in 2017. New ideas build a strong and innovative community 
and organisational culture. 

Percentage of employees of AD Plastik Group who receive regular 
feedback on their performance and individual development

Society

ZAO AD Plastik Kaluga 87%

30%
AO AD Plastik Togliatti 13%

AD Plastik d.d. 14%

ADP d.o.o. 4%
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In 2017, just as in the previous reporting period, the structure of management positions was dominated by 
employees between the ages of 30 and 50, and their share at the Group level equalled 73.68 percent. In top 
management, the share of employees between the ages of 30 and 45 increased in comparison to the previous 
reporting period. Employees between the ages of 30 and 45 also prevailed in middle and line management. A 
rhfmhǐb`ms rg`qd ne dloknxddr nm l`m`fdldms onrhshnmr vdqd `krn nudq 4/+ `mc `s sgd Fqnto kdudk sgdhq rg`qd 
equalled 19.74 percent. 

As in the previous reporting period, the Management Board structure had an almost equal representation of 
women and men, and there were no changes in the structure of the Audit Committee.

Society

Diversity and equal opportunity (continued)

Age structure of management positions of AD Plastik Group in 2017 Educational structure of AD Plastik Group in 2017

Management Board structure of  
AD Plastik Group in 2017 

Audit Committee structure of  
AD Plastik Group in 2017 
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Certificates

Society

ISO TS 16949:2009
valid until

ISO 14001:2004
valid until

OHSAS 18001:2007
valid until

ISO 50001:2011
valid until

Solin, Croatia 14. September 2018 15. September 2018 21. September 2020 27. November 2019

Zagreb, Croatia 14. September 2018 15. September 2018 21. September 2020 27. November 2019

Vintai, Russia 14. September 2018 15. February 2021

Kaluga, Russia 14. September 2018 15. September 2018 19. November 2020

Mladenovac, Serbia 14. September 2018 15. June 2018 20. December 2018 14. February 2020

The following external audits of implemented standards were carried out in 2017 across the AD Plastik Group:

•• Croatia – ISO TS 16949, ISO 14001, OHSAS 18001, ISO 50001
•• Serbia – ISO TS 16949, ISO 14001, OHSAS 18001, ISO 50001
•• Kaluga, Russia – ISO TS 16949, ISO 14001
•• Vintai, Russia – ISO TS 16949, ISO 14001

Bdqshǐb`shnm qdf`qchmf H@SE rs`mc`qc v`r b`qqhdc nts hm 1/07 `mc knb`shnmr Rnkhm+ Y`fqda `mc Uhms`h `qd `v`hs-
hmf bdqshǐb`shnm-

Hm 1/06 @C Ok`rshj J`ktf` v`r bdqshǐdc qdf`qchmf rs`mc`qc H@SE 05838 `mc hr rshkk `v`hshmf bdqshǐb`sd- Tmshk 
then existing one is valid.

Dwsdqm`k `tchsr `mc bdqshǐb`shnm hr b`qqhdc nts ax `m hmcdodmc-
dms bdqshǐb`shnm bnlo`mx Bureau Veritas Certification (BVC), 
as follows:

•• ISO TS 16949 - Quality Management System
•• ISO 14001 - Environmental Management System
•• OHSAS 18001 - Occupational health and safety
•• ISO 50001 - Energy Management System
•• ISO 27001 - Information Security Management System
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UNGC principle Page

Specific material topics (continued)

Environment

301-1 Principles 7, 8 87, 88

301-2 Principles 7, 8, 9 87, 88

302-1 Principles 7 i 8 89, 90, 91

302-2 Principle 8 91

302-3 Principle 8 92

303-1 Principles 7 i 8 59, 63

305-1 Principles 7 i 8 93 

305-2 Principle 8 93

305-4 Principles 8 i 9 94

305-5 Principle 8 93

305-6 Principle 8 94

305-7 Principle 8 95

306-1 Principle 8 96, 97

306-2 Principles 7 i 8 98

307-1 Principles 7 i 8 101

308-1 Principles 7, 8 i 9 100

308-2 Principles 7, 8 i 9 100

Comparative Table of GRI and Global Compact Indicators (continued)

UNGC principle Page

Specific material topics (continued)

Society

401-1 Principle 6 102, 103, 104

401-2 Principle 6 105

401-3 Principle 6 105, 106

402-1 Principle 6 106

403-1 Principle 7 107

403-2 Principle 7 107, 108

403-4 Principle 7 107, 109

404-1 113

404-2 111

405-1 Principles 2 i 6 114

405-2 Principles 1 i 6 83

406-1 Principles 1 i 6 114

413-1 72

414 79

415 30

416-1 Principle 1 116

416-2 Principle 1 116

417-1 116
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Tasks Achieved in 2017

•• Implementation of the ISO 50001 standard at the Mladeno-
vac location

•• Implementation of the ISO 27001 (Information Security Ma-
nagement System) at the Solin and Zagreb locations has not 
been fully realized due to the reorganization of the IT depar-
tment

•• The implementation of the ISO 27001 standard at the Mlade-
novac location was not initiated due to the reorganization of 
the IT department

•• Implementation of the OHSAS 18001 standard at the Kaluga 
location

•• Publishing and distributing the "AD Plastik Group Business 
Conduct and Policy Code" brochure to all the employees in 
three languages, at all locations

•• Introducing the system of Awarding Ideas for Improvement 
at the Mladenovac location

•• Preparation, design and distribution of the Internal Communi-
cation Guide for all locations in three languages

•• Preparation, design and distribution of a Language Handbo-
ok for locations in Croatia

•• An internal awareness-raising campaign on the importance 
of sustainable business

•• Membership in the Community For Environmental Protection 
in the Croatian Economy

•• The online poll on the company website regarding the sustai-
nability report was not conducted due to technical problems, 
but a poll was conducted among stakeholders via an electro-
nic questionnaire.
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Opinion by the Commission of the Management Board of the Croatian business council for  
Sustainable development (HR BCSD) regarding the 2017 sustainability report of AD Plastik Group

The 2017 sustainability report of AD Plastik Group was analysed by 
the independent commission of the management board of the Cro-
atian Business Council for Sustainable Development. This is the 
first Integrated report by AD Plastik Group, which includes all the 
most important business information, as well as the most important 
non-financial impacts presented by applying the newest GRI (Global 
Reporting Initiative) Standards for sustainability reporting. We con-
firm that the subject report has fulfilled the core option requirements 
of reporting according to the GRI Standards. Regarding its content, 
amount of information and the handling of topics important for real-
ising the company's goals and managing its impact, the report rep-
resents a comprehensive and detailed source of information on the 
key impacts.

Since it is integrated, this report contains a significantly larger 
amount of information which give a much clearer overview of the 
AD Plastik Group business during the previous year. Although some 
parts of this information refer to the Group’s financial operations and 
product range, they also contribute to understanding the Group’s 
business from a sustainability aspect as well. It is very useful to read 
about the positive financial and business results which show sub-
stantial growth in all aspects when compared to the results from the 
previous year. Based on the number of new contracts and jobs, it can 
be expected that AD Plastik Group shall continue its successful busi-
ness in the following years. 

Furthermore, the Report also presents the challenges of the industry 
and the demands from the aspect of sustainability that the car man-
ufacturers place before their suppliers, which means the company's 
engineers are required to have extensive knowledge and abilities 
that they the use to develop new products with a greater content of 

expanded plastic, thus reducing the overall material consumption, 
but also the weight of the products, which ultimately reduces the 
weight of the car and decreases fuel consumption. AD Plastik Group 
is also continuously increasing the quota of recycled plastic used in 
making their products.

Last year, AD Plastik Group modernised its paint shop in Zagreb with 
new technologies, which are both safe for the employees and envi-
ronmentally friendly. The Group has also made significant invest-
ments in its Croatian, Serbian and Russian factories, which resulted 
in more environmentally friendly solutions.

When the report is analysed in the context of the GRI Standard re-
quirements, AD Plastik Group, with the help of its stakeholders, 
used an analysis to select a significant number of material topics 
which were covered and presented in one or more publications spe-
cific for the topic, as required by the Standards. What is especially 
commendable about this report and should serve as an example to 
other reporting companies is the thorough and detailed account of 
the approach to managing every material topic or, when appropriate, 
a set of topics. These accounts clearly show how AD Plastik Group 
approaches a topic, why a topic is a material topic and how the topic, 
i.e. the impact the topic represents, is managed. The report also in-
cludes a clear overview of what has been done until now with regard 
to managing the impact of material topics and what the plans for 
the future regarding this issue are. Key plans and investments for 
the future have once more clearly been highlighted at the end of this 
Report.

AD Plastik Group also supports current initiatives and programmes, 
which shows that the Group is aware it has a responsibility in con-
tributing to the social development as well as to segments which 
aren’t directly connected to the company's business. Therefore, the 
Group signed the Diversity Charter which was launched last year in 
Croatia, while the President of the Management Board of the Group 
accepted the role of the Charter ambassador. Although the report 
contains publications which show that AD Plastik Group has recog-
nised the value and knowledge the female workforce can provide, the 
Group has shown to be at the forefront of promoting the principles 
of sustainability in Croatia through its engagement in the initiative. 

Lastly, it is important to note that the report has fulfilled its purpose 
completely, which was to clearly show the business and impact of 
AD Plastik Group in a transparent, understandable, balanced, com-
parable and correct manner. The report also provided information on 
the company's material topics and impacts and in what way the com-
pany manages these, with what results and what the strategy for 
managing them in the future is. Improvements for the future reports 
can be made in the accounts dealing with the inclusion of stakehold-
ers and by clearly setting the limits for each identified material topic.

The report contains information which shows that this is a compa-
ny that is technologically and strategically advanced and that un-
derstands and manages its business and non-financial impacts, i.e. 
strategies very well, thereby contributing greatly to sustainable de-
velopment. We would like to express our satisfaction and commend 
the very thorough report and the fact that the reporting guidelines 
included in the new GRI standards were taken and followed very se-
riously.

@C Ok`rshj Fqnto Ʈ Hmsdfq`sdc `mmt`k ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldms 1/06 125



The Supervisory Board have not yet considered and determined the financial statements, but shall give its decision at the meeting scheduled in May.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Notes 2017 2016

Sales 6 1,069,061 913,383

Other income 7 21,079 22,367

Total income 1,090,140 935,750

Hmbqd`rd.'cdbqd`rd( hm sgd u`ktd ne vnqj hm oqnfqdrr `mc ǐmhrgdc oqnctbsr 26 6,399 541

Cost of raw material and supplies 8 (546,355)  (461,912)

Cost of goods sold 9 (61,327)  (26,377)

Service costs 12 (71,754)  (60,376)

Staff costs 10 (210,790)  (181,044)

Depreciation and amortisation 11 (83,162)  (77,115)

Other operating expenses 13 (41,589)  (64,688)

Provisions for risks and charges 14 (6,290)  (6,040)

Total operating expenses (1,014,868) (877,011)

Profit from operations 75,272 58,739

Financial income 15 26,870 45,512

Financial expenses 16 (79,013) (98,308)

(Loss) from financing activities (52,143) (52,796)

Rg`qd hm sgd oqnǐs ne `rrnbh`sdr 17 55,871 43,172

Profit before taxation 79,000 49,115

Income tax expense 18 (8,794) 589

Profit for the year 70,206 49,704

Sgd `bbnlo`mxhmf `bbntmshmf onkhbhdr `mc mnsdr enql `m hmsdfq`k o`qs ne sgdrd bnmrnkhc`sdc ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr-

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

133@C Ok`rshj Fqnto Ʈ Hmsdfq`sdc `mmt`k ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldms 1/06 















Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

1.	 GENERAL INFORMATION

AD Plastik d.d., Solin, a public limited company for the production of motor vehicle spare parts and accesso-
qhdr `mc ne ok`rshb l`rrdr '`aaqduh`sdc ǐql9 @C OK@RSHJ c-c-(+ v`r drs`akhrgdc ax ` cdbhrhnm ne sgd Entmchmf 
Assembly dated 15 June 1994 following the transformation of the socially-owned entity Autodijelovi – Solin 
pursuant to the decision on the transformation of ownership and the Decision of the Croatian Privatisation 
Fund No. 01-02/92-06/392 of 6 December 1993. The Company is the legal successor of the socially-owned 
entity Autodijelovi and, according to the decision of the Commercial Court in Split No. Fi 6215/94 of 28 June 
1994, assumed all of its assets and liabilities as of the date of registration in the court register.

By decision of the General Shareholders' Assembly dated 21 June 2007, the Statute of the Company of 8 July 
2004 was amended and a decision was made to increase the share capital of the Company in cash. Pursuant 
to the Decision No. Tt-07/2145-3 of 25 September 2007, the increase of the share capital by HRK 125,987,500 
effected by OAO Saint Petersburg Investment Company was registered, and the total subscribed capital now 
amounts to HRK 419,958,400 and consists of 4,199,584 shares, with a nominal amount of HRK 100.00 each. 
Under the Share Transfer Agreement of 29 June 2009 OAO Spik transferred the shares of the AD Plastik d.d. 
to OAO Group Aerokosmicheskoe Oborutovanie, St. Petersburg, which transferred those shares to OAO HAK, 
Sankt Petersburg on 4 August 2011.

Sgd Bnlo`mx g`r addm hmbktcdc hm sgd khrshmf ne otakhb khlhsdc bnlo`mhdr nm sgd Neǐbh`k L`qjds ne sgd Y`fqda 
Stock Exchange since 1 October 2010.     

1.1.	 Principal business

The primary activity of the Company comprises manufacture of motor vehicle spare parts and acces-
sories. The registered activities of the Company comprise the following:

•• manufacture of motor vehicle spare parts and accessories;
•• production and trade in medical supplies for one-off application made of plastic masses: plastic 

syringes for one-off application; infusion sets; transfusion sets; disposable hemodialysis needles, 
and others.

•• representation of foreign companies;

•• international forwarding and shipping
•• oqnctbshnm ne ǐmhrgdc sdwshkd oqnctbsr nsgdq sg`m bknsghmf:
•• production of synthetic rubber in primary forms;
•• production of glues and jellies;
•• production of rubber and plastic products;
•• production of metal products other than machinery and equipment; 
•• construction and repair of leisure and sports boats;                                                
•• production of chairs and seats;
•• production of sports equipment;
•• recycling of non-metal waste and scrap;
•• computer and related activities;
•• providing advice, guidance and operational assistance to legal entities;
•• designing of accounting systems, materials accounting software, budgeting control procedures;
•• `cuhbd `mc `rrhrs`mbd sn kdf`k dmshshdr hm bnmmdbshnm vhsg ok`mmhmf+ nqf`mhr`shnm+ deǐbhdmbx `mc 

controls, management information, etc.;
•• management consulting (agronomists and agricultural economists, on farms, etc.);
•• purchase and sale of goods;
•• trade intermediation on domestic and international markets;
•• use of hazardous chemicals; and 
•• treatment of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

1.2.	 Consolidated subsidiaries

1)	 Closed-end company (ZAO) ADP Luga, established by an Articles of Association of the 
Closed-end Company ADP LUGA of 26 March 2007. 

	 Hm d`qkx 1/01 Y@N @CO Ktf`+ Ktf`+ bg`mfdc ansg hsr neǐbh`k m`ld `mc qdfhrsdqdc rd`s sn 
ZAO AD Plastik Kaluga, 248016, Skladskaja ulica 6, Kaluška oblast, Russian Federation. 
Ad Plastik d.d. Solin, holds all the Company's shares and is the sole owner of the Com-
pany. 
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@m `rrnbh`sd hr `m dmshsx nudq vghbg sgd Fqnto g`r rhfmhǐb`ms hmektdmbd ats vghbg hs cndr mns bnmsqnk- 
Rhfmhǐb`ms hmektdmbd hr sgd onvdq sn o`qshbho`sd hm sgd ǐm`mbh`k `mc nodq`shmf onkhbx cdbhrhnmr ne sgd 
investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. Commonly, an equity share from 20 to 50 
percent represents an investment in an associate.

Hm sgdrd bnmrnkhc`sdc ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr+ hmudrsldmsr hm `rrnbh`sdr `qd oqdrdmsdc tmcdq sgd dpthsx 
method.   

1.4.	 Number of staff

At 31 December 2017, the number of staff employed was 2,386 (31 December 2016: 2,121).  

@s 20 Cdbdladq 1/06 sgd mtladq ne rs`ee dloknxdc ax `rrnbh`sdr Bdms`q y` hrsq`ˑhu`mid h q`yuni `tsn-
mobilske industrije d.o.o. Zagreb, Croatia, and EURO AUTO PLASTIC SYSTEMS Mioveni, Romania, was 
656 (31 December 2016: 579). 

1.5.	 Management and corporate governance 

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

AD Plastik d.d. 1,321 1,193

AO ADP / ZAO PHR   603 521

AD Plastik d.o.o. Novo Mesto 6 6

ADP d.o.o. Mladenovac 233 172

ZAO AD Plastik Kaluga 223 229

2,386 2,121

1.	 GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

1.3.	 Associated companies (continued)

Members of the Supervisory Board mandate from mandate to

Cq`mchm Clhsqhi Kdnmhcnuhɪ 'Oqdrhcdms( 19. 10. 2015 19. 10. 2019

Huhb` Snkhɤ 'Uhbd Oqdrhcdms( 20. 07. 2016 20. 07. 2020
Gqunid Itqhʴhɤ 20. 07. 2016 20. 07. 2020
Hfnq @m`snkiduhɪ Rnknl`shm 23. 07. 2015 23. 07. 2019
Mhjhshm` M`cdˑc` @m`snkidum` 19. 10. 2015 19. 10. 2019
Yni` Bqmdɪjh 20. 07. 2017 20. 07. 2021
Robert Kuhta           30. 10. 2017 30. 10. 2021
Cnknqdr ɩdqhm` 02. 06. 2015 22. 09. 2017
L`qhin Fqftqhmnuhɤ 23. 07. 2015 19. 07. 2017

Members of the Management Board mandate from mandate to
Marinko Došen (President) 20. 07. 2016 20. 07. 2020
Katija Klepo 20. 07. 2016 20. 07. 2020
Mladen Peroš 20. 07. 2016 20. 07. 2020
R`mi` Ahnɪhɤ 20. 07. 2016 20. 07. 2020

Members of Audit Committee mandate from mandate to
Huhb` Snkhɤ 'Oqdrhcdms( 25. 05. 2017 25. 05. 2021
Cq`mchm Clhsqhi Kdnmhcnuhɪ 23. 07. 2015 23. 07. 2019
Nenad Škomrlj 01. 06. 2016 01. 06. 2020
Anatolij Janovskis 01. 06. 2016 01. 06. 2020
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2.	 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 
STANDARDS

Initial application of new amendments to the existing standards effective for the current reporting period 

The following amendments to the existing standards and new interpretation issued by the International Ac-
counting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the EU are effective for the current reporting period:

•• Amendments to IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” - Disclosure Initiative – adopted by EU on 6 No-
vember 2017 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017),

•• Amendments to IAS 12 “Income Taxes” - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses 
– adopted by EU on 6 November 2017 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2017),

•• Amendments to IFRS 12 due to “Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2014 - 2016)” resulting from the 
annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and IAS 28) primarily with a view to removing 
inconsistencies and clarifying wording – adopted by the EU on 7 February 2018 (amendments to 
IFRS 12 are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017).

The adoption of these amendments to the existing standards has not led to any material changes in the 
FqntoƦr ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr-

Standards and amendments to the existing standards issued by IASB and adopted by the EU but not yet 
effective

@s sgd c`sd ne `tsgnqhr`shnm ne sgdrd ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr+ sgd enkknvhmf mdv rs`mc`qcr hrrtdc ax H@RA `mc 
adopted by the EU are not yet effective:

•• IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” - adopted by the EU on 22 November 2016 (effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018),

•• IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and amendments to IFRS 15 “Effective date of 
IFRS 15” - adopted by the EU on 22 September 2016 (effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018),

•• IFRS 16 “Leases” – adopted by the EU on 31 October 2017 (effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2019),

•• Amendments to IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” , Bk`rrhǐb`shnm `mc Ld`rtqdldms ne Rg`qd,a`rdc 
Payment Transactions – adopted by the EU on 27 February 2018 (effective for annual periods begin-
ning on or after 1 January 2018),

•• Amendments to IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” - Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 
Insurance Contracts – adopted by the EU on 3 November 2017 (effective for annual periods begin-
mhmf nm nq `esdq 0 I`mt`qx 1/07 nq vgdm HEQR 8 ƩEhm`mbh`k Hmrsqtldmsrƪ hr `ookhdc ǐqrs shld(+

•• Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” - Prepayment Features with Negative Compen-
sation – adopted by the EU on 3 November 2017 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2019),

•• Amendments to IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” , Bk`qhǐb`shnmr sn HEQR 04 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers – adopted by the EU on 31 October 2017 (effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

•• Amendments to IAS 40 “Investment Property” - Transfers of Investment Property – adopted by 
the EU on 14 March 2018 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018),

•• Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 due to “Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2014 -2016)” resulting 
from the annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and IAS 28) primarily with a view to 
removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording – adopted by the EU on 7 February 2018 (amend-
ments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018),
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•• 	IFRIC 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration” – adopted by the EU on 28 
March 2018 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

The Group has elected not to adopt these new standards and amendments to existing standards in advance 
of their effective dates The Group anticipates that the adoption of these standards and amendments to ex-
hrshmf rs`mc`qcr vhkk g`ud mn l`sdqh`k hlo`bs nm sgd ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr ne sgd Fqnto hm sgd odqhnc ne hmhsh`k 
application.

New standards and amendments to the existing standards issued by IASB but not yet adopted by the EU

@s oqdrdms+ HEQR `r `cnosdc ax sgd DT cn mns rhfmhǐb`mskx cheedq eqnl qdftk`shnmr `cnosdc ax sgd Hmsdqm`shnm-
al Accounting Standards Board (IASB) except for the following new standards, amendments to the existing 
standards and new interpretation, which were not endorsed for use in EU as at 19 April 2018 (the effective 
dates stated below is for IFRS in full):

•• IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Jan-
uary 2016) - the European Commission has decided not to launch the endorsement process of this 
hmsdqhl rs`mc`qc `mc sn v`hs enq sgd ǐm`k rs`mc`qc+

•• 	IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021),

•• 	Amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in Asso-
ciates and Joint Ventures” - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate 
nq Inhms Udmstqd `mc etqsgdq `ldmcldmsr 'deedbshud c`sd cdedqqdc hmcdǐmhsdkx tmshk sgd qdrd`qbg 
project on the equity method has been concluded),

•• 	Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effec-
tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

•• Amendments to IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” - Long-term Interests in 
Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

•• Amendments to various standards due to “Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2015 -2017)” resulting 
from the annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23) primarily with a 
view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording (effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2019),

•• 	IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” (effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2019).

Sgd Fqnto cndr mns dwodbs rhfmhǐb`ms hlo`bs nm sgd ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr enq sgd xd`q 1/07 ax sgd bg`mfdr ne 
IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” which come into effect 
`esdq 0 I`mt`qx 1/07- Sns`k `lntms ne kh`ahkhshdr tmcdq ǐm`mbh`k kd`rdr `s 20 Cdbdladq 1/06 `lntmsr sn GQJ 
1+/4/ sgntr`mc- Sgdhq bk`rrhǐb`shnm vhkk ad hmektdmbdc ax sgd `ookhb`shnm ne HEQR 05 ƩKd`rdrƪ vghbg bnldr 
into effect after 1 January 2019.

2.	 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 
STANDARDS (continued)

Standards and amendments to the existing standards issued by IASB and adopted by the EU but not yet 
effective (continued)
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Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a pro rata basis, using the effective interest method. Interest earned 
on balances with commercial banks (demand and term deposits) is credited to income for the period as 
it accrues. Interest on trade receivables is recognised as income when accrued.

3.5.	 Revenue recognition 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying as-
sets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended 
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready 
for their intended use or sale.

Hmudrsldms hmbnld d`qmdc nm sgd sdlonq`qx hmudrsldms ne rodbhǐb anqqnvhmfr odmchmf sgdhq dwodmch-
ture on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

@kk nsgdq anqqnvhmf bnrsr `qd qdbnfmhrdc hm oqnǐs nq knrr hm sgd odqhnc hm vghbg sgdx `qd hmbtqqdc-

3.6.	 Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Croatian kunas at the rates of exchange in effect 
at the dates of the transactions. Cash, receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are 
qdsq`mrk`sdc `s sgd q`sdr ne dwbg`mfd hm deedbs `s sgd c`sd ne sgd rs`sdldms ne ǐm`mbh`k onrhshnm- F`hmr 
`mc knrrdr `qhrhmf nm sq`mrk`shnm `qd hmbktcdc hm oqnǐs `mc knrr enq sgd xd`q- @s 20 Cdbdladq 1/06+ sgd 
neǐbh`k dwbg`mfd q`sd ne sgd Bqn`sh`m jtm` `f`hmrs 0 dtqn 'DTQ( v`r GQJ 6+402537 '20 Cdbdladq 1/059 
HRK 7.557787 for 1 EUR).

Translation reserves

The Group may have a monetary item as an amount receivable from, or payable to a foreign entity. An 
item neither planned to be settled nor likely to arise in the foreseeable future is essentially part of the 
entity's net investment in a foreign operation and accounted for in accordance with IAS 21. The Group 
recognizes foreign exchange differences arising from monetary items that are part of the net foreign in-
vestment initially in other comprehensive income and accumulates them under a separate component 
of equity – Reserves from accruals of foreign exchange differences.
 
On disposal of a net investment in a foreign operation, the entire balance of exchange differences is 
sq`mredqqdc eqnl dpthsx sn oqnǐs nq knrr-

3.7.	 Income tax expense 

Current tax

Hmbnld s`w dwodmrd hr a`rdc nm s`w`akd oqnǐs enq sgd xd`q `mc qdoqdrdmsr sgd rtl ne sgd s`w btqqdmskx 
payable and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except 
where it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is also recognised in equity. 
Btqqdms s`w qdoqdrdmsr s`w dwodbsdc sn ad o`hc nm sgd a`rhr ne s`w`akd oqnǐs enq sgd xd`q+ trhmf sgd s`w 
q`sdr dm`bsdc `s sgd c`sd ne sgd rs`sdldms ne ǐm`mbh`k onrhshnm+ `citrsdc ax `ooqnoqh`sd oqhnq,odqhnc 
tax liabilities. 

Under Croatian tax regulations, group entities are not subject to taxation on a consolidated bases, 
and tax losses cannot be transferred within group entities. Subsidiaries are subject to taxation in their 
respective jurisdictions.

3.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4.	 Revenue recognition (continued)
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differenc-
dr adsvddm sgd b`qqxhmf `lntmsr ne `rrdsr `mc kh`ahkhshdr enq ǐm`mbh`k qdonqshmf otqonrdr `mc sgd 
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate 
dwodbsdc sn `ookx sn s`w`akd oqnǐs hm sgd odqhnc hm vghbg sgd kh`ahkhsx hr dwodbsdc sn ad rdsskdc nq sgd 
`rrds qd`khrdc+ a`rdc nm sgd s`w q`sdr hm deedbs `s sgd c`sd ne sgd rs`sdldms ne ǐm`mbh`k onrhshnm- 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the amount that the Group expects, at 
sgd c`sd ne sgd rs`sdldms ne ǐm`mbh`k onrhshnm+ sn qdbnudq nq rdsskd sgd b`qqxhmf `lntmsr ne hsr `rrdsr 
`mc kh`ahkhshdr- Cdedqqdc s`w `rrdsr `mc kh`ahkhshdr `qd mns chrbntmsdc `mc `qd bk`rrhǐdc hm sgd rs`sdldms 
ne ǐm`mbh`k onrhshnm `r mnm,btqqdms `rrdsr `mc.nq mnm,btqqdms kh`ahkhshdr- 

Cdedqqdc s`w `rrdsr `qd qdbnfmhrdc nmkx sn sgd dwsdms sg`s hs hr oqna`akd sg`s sgd qdk`sdc s`w admdǐs vhkk 
ad qd`khrdc-  @s d`bg c`sd ne sgd rs`sdldms ne ǐm`mbh`k onrhshnm+ sgd Fqnto qduhdvr sgd tmqdbnfmhrdc 
potential deferred tax assets and the carrying amount of the recognised deferred tax assets.

3.8.	 Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment as well as intangible assets are recognised at purchase cost and sub-
sequently reduced by accumulated depreciation/amortisation. The purchase cost comprises the pur-
chase price, import duties and non-refundable sales taxes (on property, plant and equipment) and any 
directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to its working condition and location for its intended 
use, such as employee remuneration, professional fees directly arising from putting an asset into its 
working condition, test costs (for intangible assets), as well as all other costs directly attributable to 
brining an asset to a condition for its intended use. Maintenance and repairs, replacements and im-
provements of minor importance are expensed as incurred. Where it is obvious that expenses incurred 

qdrtksdc hm `m hmbqd`rd ne dwodbsdc etstqd dbnmnlhb admdǐsr sn ad cdqhudc eqnl sgd trd ne `m hsdl 
of property, plant and equipment or intangible assets in excess of the originally assessed standard 
performance of the asset, they are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Gains or losses on the re-
shqdldms nq chronr`k ne oqnodqsx+ ok`ms `mc dptholdms nq hms`mfhakd `rrdsr `qd hmbktcdc hm oqnǐs nq knrr 
in the period in which they occur. Depreciation commences on putting an asset into use. Depreciation 
is provided so as to write town the cost or revalued amount of an asset other than land, property, plant 
and equipment and intangible assets under development over the estimated useful life of the asset 
using the straight-line method as follows: 

Tangible and intangible assets Depreciation rates 
in 2017 (%)

Depreciation rates 
in 2016 (%)

Buildings 1.50 1.50

Machinery 7.00 7.00

Snnkr+ etqmhstqd+ neǐbd `mc k`anq`snqx dptho-
ment and accessories, measuring and control 
instruments

10.00 10.00

Vehicles 20.00 20.00

IT equipment 20.00 20.00

Other 10.00 10.00

Projects 20.00 20.00

Software 20.00 20.00

3.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7.	 Income tax expense  (continued)
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2016 Opening
balance

(Charged) to the 
statement of 
comprehensive 
income

Closing 
balance

Temporary differences:

Provisions for jubilee awards and termination 
admdǐsr 4,043 (1,145) 2,898

Reserves from translation of foreign currencies, net 26,619 (19,379) 7,240

Movements in reserves on revaluation of tangible 
`mc hms`mfhakd ǐwdc `rrdsr (8,263) 3,889 (4,374)

Balance at 31 December 22,399 (16,635) 5,764

18.	 INCOME TAX (continued) (in thousands of kunas)

Reconciliation between the accounting and tax results is shown as follows:

2017 2016 

Accounting profit before tax and deferred taxation 79,000 49,115

Effect of tax base increasing items 22,784 21,986

Effect of tax base decreasing items (65,328) (107,118)

Tax base 36,456 (36,017)

Tax at the weighted average rate 6,642 -

Tax reliefs (3,834)

Income tax expenses before effects of deferred taxation 2,808 -

Cdedqqdc s`w qdbnfmhrdc hm oqnǐs nq knrr 5,986 (589)

Income tax expense 8,794 (589)

19.	 EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES FROM TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN 
OPERATIONS AND RESERVES FROM ACCRUALS OF FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES – TRANSACTIONS WITH SUBSIDIARIES 

(in thousands of kunas)

Reserves from accruals of foreign 
exchange differences – transacti-

ons with subsidiaries 

Exchange differences from 
translation a foreign operations – 

transactions with subsidiaries

2017 2016 2017 2016

Balance at beginning of the year (36,198) (112,292) (38,372) (31,203)

Exchange differences from tran-
slation of foreign operations - - (1,203) (7,169)

Accruals of foreign exchange 
differences from the current year (12,543) 39,115 - -

Income tax 2,509 (7,823) - -

Exchange differences from 
translation of foreign operati-
ons, net

(10,034) 31,292 (1,203) (7,169)

Realization of exchange diffe-
rences 28,258 44,802 - -

Balance at end of year (17,974) (36,198) (39,575) (38,372)

20.	 EARNINGS PER SHARE

A`rhb d`qmhmfr odq rg`qd `qd cdsdqlhmdc+ ax chuhchmf sgd Fqnto&r mds oqnǐs ax sgd vdhfgsdc `udq`fd mtladq ne 
ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding the average number of ordinary shares redeemed and held 
by the Group as treasury shares. The basic earnings per share equal the diluted earnings per share, as there 
are currently no share options that would potentially increase the number of issued shares.

2017 2016

Mds oqnǐs `ssqhats`akd sn sgd rg`qdgnkcdqr ne sgd Fqnto 70,206 49,704

Weighted average number of shares 4,173,705 4,169,725

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in kunas and lipas) 16.82 11.92
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21.	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (in thousands of kunas)

Licences Software Projects Other intangible 
assets

Intangible assets 
under development Total

Cost
Balance at 31 December 2015 702 6,231 177,582 1,787 38,158 224,460
Additions - - - - 21,662 21,662
Assets put into use - 454 32,552 24 (33,030) -
Disposals and retirements (55) (613) (3,838) (4) (2,470) (6,979)
Effect of exchange differences (16) 5 3,725 (32) 230 3,912
Balance at 31 December 2016 631 6,077 210,021 1,775 24,550 243,054
Additions - - - - 19,914 19,914
Assets put into use - 1,315 22,964 - (24,279) -
Disposals - - (810) - - (810)
Write off - - (3,356) - - (3,356)
Effect of exchange differences 23 (24) (2,435) 54 (32) (2,414)
Balance at 31 December 2017 654 7,368 226,384 1,829 20,153 256,388
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 31 December 2015 421 4,551 93,487 23 - 98,482
Charge for the year (Note 11) 126 604 26,148 94 - 26,972
Disposals and retirements - (392) (692) - - (1,084)
Effect of exchange differences (10) (34) (407) 2 - (449)
Balance at 31 December 2016 537 4,729 118,536 119 - 123,921
Charge for the year (Note 11) 95 916 29,835 24 - 30,870
Disposals - - (362) - - (362)
Write off - - (1,436) - - (1,436)
Effect of exchange differences 23 (21) (1,611) (2) - (1,611)
Balance at 31 December 2017 654 5,623 144,962 141 - 151,380
Net book value
At 31 December 2016 95 1,350 91,485 1,656 24,551 119,136
At 31 December 2017 - 1,746 81,423 1,689 20,153 105,011

Projects comprise investments in the development of new products that are expected to generate revenue in 
future periods. 

Bnmrdptdmskx+ sgd bnrsr `qd `lnqshydc nudq sgd odqhnc hm vghbg sgd qdk`sdc dbnmnlhb admdǐsr eknv hmsn sgd 
Group.
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Name of associate Principal activity Country of incorporation 
and business

Ownership interest in % Amount of equity investment, HRK'000

2017 2016 2017 2016 

EURO AUTO PLASTIC SYSTEMS Manufacture of other motor vehicle 
spare parts and accessories Mioveni, Romania 50.00% 50.00% 96,822 82,929

BDMS@Q Y@ HRSQ@ːHU@MID H Q@YUNI @TSNLNAHKRJD HMCTRSQH-
JE

Automotive industry research and 
development Zagreb, Croatia 24.00% 24.00% 38 35

Total 96,860 82,964

24.	 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (in thousands of kunas)

Name of associate Country of incorporation 
and business

Amount of equity 
investment

Share in the result 
for the year 2016 

(Note 17)

New investments 
made during the 

period
Dividends paid Amount of equity 

investment

31.12.2015 31.12.2016

EURO AUTO PLASTIC SYSTEMS Mioveni, Romania 86,481 43,164 - (46,716) 82,929

BDMS@Q Y@ HRSQ@ːHU@MID H Q@YUNI @TSNLNAHKRJD HMCTRSQHID Zagreb, Croatia 27 8 - - 35

Total 86,508 43,172 - (46,716) 82,964

Name of associate Country of incorporation 
and business

Amount of equity 
investment

Share in the result 
for the year 2017 

(Note 17)

New investments 
made during the 

period
Dividends paid Amount of equity 

investment

31.12.2016 31.12.2017

EURO AUTO PLASTIC SYSTEMS Mioveni, Romania 82,929 55,867 - (41,974) 96,822

BDMS@Q Y@ HRSQ@ːHU@MID H Q@YUNI @TSNLNAHKRJD HMCTRSQHID Zagreb, Croatia 35 3 - - 38

Total 82,964 55,870 - (41,974) 96,860

Euro Auto Plastic Systems s.r.l. is considered to be associate since the management of its operations is under 
the control of Faurecia Automotive Holdings s.a.s.
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37.	  SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS (continued) 40.	 GOODWILL 

38.	 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

39.	 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME

(in thousands of kunas) (in thousands of kunas)

(in thousands of kunas)

(in thousands of kunas)

2017 2016

Balance at 1 January 223,058 163,100

New loans raised 85,995 100,065

Qdbk`rhǐb`shnm nm btqqdms onqshnm ne knmf,sdql anqqnvhmfr 'Mnsd 
34) 136,558 106,084

Invoiced interest 15,984 20,355

Exchange differences (2,532) 1,646

Interest paid (16,964) (18,567)

Repayments of received loans (300,137) (149,625)

Balance at 31 December 141,962 223,058

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Due to the State and State institutions 12,177 8,647

Amounts due to employees 10,162 9,075

Other current liabilities 63 132

22,402 17,854

2017 2016

At 1 January 9,411 7,612

Effect of exchange differences (741) 1,799

At 31 December 8,670 9,411

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Accrued tool expenses 3,286 19,677

Due to the State and State institutions 462 663

Other current liabilities 10,538 5,143

14,286 25,483

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Goodwill 8,670 9,411

8,670 9,411

Recognized goodwill relates to the difference between the net assets of KZA and the value paid for the pur-
chase of KZA by ZAO AD Plastik Kaluga.

Movement of goodwill:
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42.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT  
(continued)

42.5.	 Interest rate risk (continued)

(in thousands of kunas)

FqntoƦr anqqnvhmfr `qd `fqddc vhsg ǐwdc hmsdqdrs q`sdr+ vghkd hmsdqdrs q`sd qhrj dwonrtqd eqnl hmsdqdrs 
generating assets is linked with Croatian National Bank decisions on interest rates that can be charged 
to subsidiaries. The Group continuously monitors interest rate changes and forecasts, various scenari-
nr `qd rhltk`sdc s`jhmf hmsn `bbntms qdǐm`mbhmf+ btqqdms rs`sd qdmdv`k `mc `ksdqm`shud ǐm`mbhmf-

42.6.	 Credit risk

Bqdchs qhrj hr sgd qhrj sg`s ` o`qsx hm ` ǐm`mbh`k hmrsqtldms vhkk mns etkǐk hsr nakhf`shnm `mc sgtr b`trdr 
ǐm`mbh`k knrr sn sgd nsgdq o`qsx- Sgd Fqnto hr dwonrdc sn bqdchs qhrj hm qdrodbs ne fhudm kn`mr `mc sq`cd 
receivables. Loans have been granted to its subsidiaries, and as such the credit risk is under the control 
ne sgd Fqnto- Sq`cd qdbdhu`akdr bqdchs qhrj hr lhmhl`k adb`trd hs hr Fqnto onkhbx sn sq`mr`bs vhsg ǐm`m-
cially sound companies where the risk of default is minimised. Impairment allowance was made on 
doubtful and disputed trade receivables.

The eight largest customers of the Group are Revoz d.d. Slovenija, Reydel Automotive France s.a.s. 
Francuska, OAO Avtovaz Rusija, Renault Rusija, Hella Saturnus d.o.o. Slovenija, PSA Groupe s.a. Fran-
btrj`+ Fqton @msnkhm Stqmnu r-q-n- ɩdʴj`+ EB@ Hs`kx r-o-`- Hs`khi`-- Hm 1/06 sgd Fqnto fdmdq`sdc 6/-/1$ 
percent of its sales from its major customer (2016: 71.69%).

42.7.	 Foreign currency risk management

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Hence, exposures to 
exchange rate fluctuations arise. The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign-currency denominated 
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting date are provided in the table below using the 
middle exchange rates of the Croatian National Bank:

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of changes in the exchange rates for the euro (EUR) and the 
Russian rouble (RUB). The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 2 percent change of the 
Croatian kuna against the euro and a 10 percent change of the Croatian kuna against the Russian rou-
ble in 2017 and 2016. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated 
lnmds`qx hsdlr `mc sgdhq sq`mrk`shnm `s sgd xd`q,dmc- @ mdf`shud ǐftqd adknv hmchb`sdr ` cdbqd`rd 
hm oqnǐs `mc ` onrhshud ǐftqd vgdqd sgd Bqn`sh`m jtm` bg`mfdr `f`hmrs sgd qdkdu`ms btqqdmbx enq sgd 
odqbdms`fd rodbhǐdc `anud- 

As at 31 
Decem-

ber

Assets Liabilities Net FX position

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

RUB 48,982 108,062 19,143 19,561 29,839 88,501

CZK 273 - - 154 273 (154)

GBP 122 35 26 - 96 35

USD 87 118 89 218 (2) (100)

RSD 3,642 3,748 4,032 4,901 (390) (1,153)

EUR 181,406 115,921 393,502 286,864 (212,096) (170,943)

234,512 227,884 416,792 311,698 (182,280) (83,814)

EUR impact

2017 2016

Change in exchange differences (2%) +/- 4.244 +/- 3.419

RUB impact

2017 2016

Change in exchange differences (10%) +/- 2.984 +/- 8.850
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Separate statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Notes 2017 2016

Sales 5 817,682 701,423

Other income 6 16,971 16,453

Total income 834,653 717,876

Hmbqd`rd . 'cdbqd`rd( hm sgd u`ktd ne vnqj hm oqnfqdrr `mc ǐmhrgdc oqnctbsr 3,392 1,528

Cost of raw material and supplies 7 (373,577) (340,681)

Cost of goods sold 8 (133,641) (62,704)

Service costs 9 (55,501) (45,978)

Staff costs 10 (151,035) (132,489)

Depreciation and amortisation 11 (51,775) (48,918)

Other operating expenses 12 (27,721) (50,283)

Provisions for risks and charges (net) 13 (5,415) (3,842)

Total operating expenses (795,273) (683,367)

Profit from operations 39,380 34,509 

Financial income 14 59,742 72,696 

Financial expenses 15 (43,523) (68,312)

Profit from financing activities 16,219 4,384 

Profit before taxation 55,599 38,894 

Income tax expense 16 (2,200) (547) 

Profit for the year 53,399 38,347 

The accompanying accounting policies and notes 
enql `m hmsdfq`k o`qs ne sgdrd rdo`q`sd ǐm`mbh`k 
statements.

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)
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Separate statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued) (All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

Notes 2017. 2016.

Items that may be included subsequently in profit or loss

Exchange differences on translation of a foreign operation, net 17 - 5,436 

Hsdlr sg`s `qd mns rtardptdmskx qdbk`rrhǐdc sn oqnǐs nq knrr 

Bg`mfdr hm qdu`kt`shnm qdrdqudr ne ǐwdc `rrdsr+ mds - (1,696)

Total comprehensive income for the year 53,399 42,087

Earnings per share 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in kunas and lipas) 18 12,79 9,20

The accompanying accounting policies and notes 
enql `m hmsdfq`k o`qs ne sgdrd rdo`q`sd ǐm`mbh`k 
statements.
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Separate statement of changes in shareholders' equity
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued) (All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

Share capital Capital reserves Legal reserve General reserves

Reserve from 
revaluation of 
non-current 

tangible assets

Reserves from 
accruals of foreign 

exchange differences 
– transactions with 

subsidiaries 

Reserves for 
own shares Treasury shares Retained ear-

nings Total

Balance at 31 December 2015  419,958 191,565 6,129 25,410 1,696 (45,062) 3,108 (3,108) 45,275 644,972 

Oqnǐs enq sgd xd`q - - - - - - - - 38,347 38,347 

Other comprehensive income for the 
year, net of income taxes - - - - (1,696) 5,436 - - - 3,740 

Sns`k bnloqdgdmrhud hmbnld enq sgd 
xd`q - - - - (1,696) 5,436 - - 38,347 42,087

Dividends paid - - - (4,769) - - - - (45,275) (50,044)

Disposal of own (treasury) shares - - - 415 - - (415) 415 - 415 

Valuation of own (treasury) shares - - - - - - 1,182 (1,182) - -

Realization of the recognised exchange 
differences (Note 17) - - - - - 28,289 - - - 28,289 

Balance at 31 December 2016 419,958 191,565 6,129 21,056 - (11,337) 3,875 (3,875) 38,347 665,718 

Sgd `bbnlo`mxhmf `bbntmshmf onkhbhdr `mc mnsdr enql `m hmsdfq`k o`qs ne sgdrd rdo`q`sd ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr-
 

186





Separate statement of cash flows 
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued) (All amounts are expressed in thousands of kunas)

Sgd `bbnlo`mxhmf `bbntmshmf onkhbhdr `mc mnsdr enql `m hmsdfq`k o`qs ne sgdrd rdo`q`sd ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr-

Cash flows from financing activities Notes 2017 2016

Purchase of own (treasury) shares (119) -

Dividends paid (35,485) (50,044)

Proceeds from borrowings 33,36 239,013 95,927 

Repayment of borrowings 36 (287,152) (120,459)

Qdo`xldms ne ǐm`mbh`k kd`rd (2,647) (3,339)

Cash used in financing activities (86,390) (77,916)

(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents, net 29 (889) 619 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,033 3,414 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 29 3,144 4,033 
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3.16.	 Financial instruments

Ehm`mbh`k `rrdsr `mc ǐm`mbh`k kh`ahkhshdr hmbktcdc hm sgd `bbnlo`mxhmf ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr bnmrhrs ne 
cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, trade and other receivables, trade and other pay-
ables, long-term receivables, loans, borrowings and investments. The details of the recognition and 
measure-ment of those items are presented in the accounting policies below.

Investments are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis, where the purchase or sale of an 
investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe 
established by the market concerned. They are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, 
dwbdos enq sgnrd ǐm`mbh`k `rrdsr bk`rrhǐdc `r `s e`hq u`ktd sgqntfg oqnǐs nq knrr hm sgd rs`sdldms ne 
comprehen-sive income.

Sgd bk`rrhǐb`shnm cdodmcr nm sgd m`stqd `mc otqonrd ne sgd ǐm`mbh`k `rrdsr `mc hr cdsdqlhmdc `s sgd 
time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Sq`cd+ kn`m `mc nsgdq qdbdhu`akdr vhsg ǐwdc nq cdsdqlhm`akd o`xldmsr sg`s `qd mns ptnsdc hm `m `bshud 
l`qjds `qd bk`rrhǐdc `r kn`mr `mc qdbdhu`akdr- Kn`mr `mc qdbdhu`akdr `qd ld`rtqdc `s `lnqshrdc bnrs 
using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying 
the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables, where the recognition of interest would 
be immaterial.

Effective interest method

Sgd deedbshud hmsdqdrs ldsgnc hr ` ldsgnc ne b`kbtk`shmf sgd `lnqshrdc bnrs ne ` ǐm`mbh`k `rrds nq 
liability, and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 
sg`s dw`bskx chrbntmsr drshl`sdc etstqd b`rg o`xldmsr sgqntfg sgd dwodbsdc khed ne sgd ǐm`mbh`k `rrds 
or liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
 

Hlo`hqldms ne ǐm`mbh`k `rrdsr

Ehm`mbh`k `rrdsr `qd `rrdrrdc enq hmchb`shnmr ne hlo`hqldms `s d`bg c`sd ne sgd rs`sdldms ne ǐm`m-
bh`k onrhshnm- @ ǐm`mbh`k `rrds `qd hlo`hqdc vgdqd sgdqd hr naidbshud duhcdmbd sg`s+ `r ` qdrtks ne nmd 
nq lnqd dudmsr sg`s nbbtqqdc `esdq sgd hmhsh`k qdbnfmhshnm ne sgd ǐm`mbh`k `rrds+ sgd drshl`sdc etstqd 
b`rg eknvr ne sgd hmudrsldms g`ud addm hlo`bsdc- Enq ǐm`mbh`k `rrdsr b`qqhdc `s `lnqshrdc bnrs+ sgd 
amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

Hlo`hqldms knrr nm ` ǐm`mbh`k `rrds hr qdbnfmhrdc ax qdctbhmf sgd b`qqxhmf `lntms ne sgd `rrds 
through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off 
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited 
against the allowance account.

Cdqdbnfmhshnm ne ǐm`mbh`k `rrdsr

Sgd Bnlo`mx cdqdbnfmhrdr ` ǐm`mbh`k `rrds nmkx vgdm sgd bnmsq`bst`k qhfgsr sn sgd b`rg eknvr eqnl 
the asset have expired, when the asset is transferred and when substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of the asset are passed onto another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains 
sub-stantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the 
Com-pany recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may 
have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred 
ǐm`mbh`k `rrds+ sgd Bnlo`mx bnmshmtdr sn qdbnfmhrd sgd ǐm`mbh`k `rrds `mc `krn qdbnfmhrdr ` bnkk`sdq-
alised bor-rowing for the proceeds received. 

Bk`rrhǐb`shnm `r cdas nq dpthsx

Cdas `mc dpthsx hmrsqtldmsr `qd bk`rrhǐdc `r dhsgdq ǐm`mbh`k kh`ahkhshdr nq `r dpthsx hm `bbnqc`mbd vhsg 
the substance of the underlying contractual arrangement.

3.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

197@C Ok`rshj Fqnto Ʈ Hmsdfq`sdc `mmt`k ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldms 1/06 





@ ǐm`mbh`k kh`ahkhsx nsgdq sg`m ` ǐm`mbh`k kh`ahkhsx gdkc enq sq`chmf nq bnmshmfdms bnmrhcdq`shnm sg`s l`x 
be paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination may be designated as at fair value through 
oqnǐs nq knrr tonm hmhsh`k qdbnfmhshnm he9

•• rtbg cdrhfm`shnm dkhlhm`sdr nq rhfmhǐb`mskx qdctbdr ` ld`rtqdldms nq qdbnfmhshnm hmbnmrhrsdmbx 
that would otherwise arise; or

•• sgd ǐm`mbh`k kh`ahkhsx enqlr o`qs ne ` fqnto ne ǐm`mbh`k `rrdsr nq ǐm`mbh`k kh`ahkhshdr nq ansg+ vghbg hr 
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's 
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is pro-
vided internally on that basis; or

•• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the 
dmshqd bnlahmdc bnmsq`bs sn ad cdrhfm`sdc `r `s e`hq u`ktd sgqntfg oqnǐs nq knrr-

Ehm`mbh`k kh`ahkhshdr `s e`hq u`ktd sgqntfg oqnǐs nq knrr `qd rs`sdc `s e`hq u`ktd+ vhsg `mx f`hmr nq knrrdr 
`qhrhmf nm qdld`rtqdldms qdbnfmhrdc hm oqnǐs nq knrr- Sgd mds f`hm nq knrr qdbnfmhrdc hm oqnǐs nq knrr 
hmbnqonq`sdr `mx hmsdqdrs o`hc nm sgd ǐm`mbh`k kh`ahkhsx `mc hr hmbktcdc hm sgd ƥnsgdq f`hmr `mc knrrdr& 
line item.

Nsgdq ǐm`mbh`k kh`ahkhshdr

Nsgdq ǐm`mbh`k kh`ahkhshdr 'hmbktchmf anqqnvhmfr `mc sq`cd `mc nsgdq o`x`akdr( `qd rtardptdmskx ld`r-
ured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Sgd deedbshud hmsdqdrs ldsgnc hr ` ldsgnc ne b`kbtk`shmf sgd `lnqshrdc bnrs ne ` ǐm`mbh`k kh`ahkhsx `mc 
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an 
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through 
sgd dwodbsdc khed ne sgd ǐm`mbh`k kh`ahkhsx+ nq 'vgdqd `ooqnoqh`sd( ` rgnqsdq odqhnc+ sn sgd mds b`qqxhmf 
amount on initial recognition.

4.	 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UN-
CERTAINTY  
In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the Manage-
ment Board is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on past experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual 
results may differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting esti-
mates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that peri-
od or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Areas of estimation include, but are not limited to, depreciation periods and residual values of property, 
plant and equipment and intangible assets, impairment of receivables, and actuarial estimates. The key 
`qd`r ne drshl`shnm hm `ookxhmf sgd Bnlo`mxƦr `bbntmshmf onkhbhdr sg`s g`c ` lnrs rhfmhǐb`ms hlo`bs 
nm sgd `lntmsr qdbnfmhydc hm sgd ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr vdqd `r enkknvr9
Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

As described in Note 3.6., the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equip-
ment and intangible assets at the end of each annual reporting period. Property, plant and equipment 
are recognised initially at cost less accumulated depreciation.

@u`hk`ahkhsx ne s`w`akd oqnǐsr `f`hmrs vghbg sgd cdedqqdc s`w `rrdsr bntkc ad qdbnfmhrdc

A deferred tax asset is recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that tax-
`akd oqnǐs vhkk ad `u`hk`akd `f`hmrs vghbg sgd qdk`sdc s`w admdǐs bntkc ad qd`khrdc- Hm cdsdqlhmhmf sgd 
`lntms ne cdedqqdc s`wdr sg`s b`m ad qdbnfmhrdc rhfmhǐb`ms itcfdldms hr qdpthqdc+ vghbg hr a`rdc 
nm sgd oqna`akd pt`mshǐb`shnm ne shld `mc kdudk ne etstqd s`w`akd oqnǐsr+ snfdsgdq vhsg sgd etstqd s`w 
planning strategy. In 2017, deferred tax assets were recognised in respect of tax differences available 
for utilisation.

Impairment allowance on trade receivables

Management provides for doubtful receivables based on a review of the overall ageing of all receivables 
`mc ` rodbhǐb qduhdv ne rhfmhǐb`ms hmchuhct`k `lntmsr qdbdhu`akd- Sgd `kknv`mbd enq `lntmsr cntasetk 

3.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21.	 Financial liabilities (continued)
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16.	 INCOME TAX (continued)

18.	 EARNINGS PER SHARE

17.	 RESERVES FROM ACCRUALS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE  
DIFFERENCES – TRANSACTIONS WITH SUBSIDIARIES

(in thousands of kunas) (in thousands of kunas)

Reconciliation between the accounting and tax results is shown as follows:

The effective income tax rate in Republic of Croatia in year 2017 was 18% (2016: 20%).

Nm 13 Nbsnadq 1/01 sgd Bnlo`mx ǐkdc vhsg sgd Lhmhrsqx ne Dbnmnlx sgd @ookhb`shnm enq Hmbdmshud Ld`rtqdr 
for the investment project "Expansion of Production for the Purpose of Export of Car Industry Products", in 
accordance with the Act on Investment Promotion and Development of Investment Climate (OG 111/2012 and 
28/2013) and the Investment Promotion and Development of Investment Climate (OG 40/2013).

@r ` qdrtks+ sgd Bnlo`mx l`cd hmudrsldmsr hm ǐwdc `rrdsr+ g`uhmf sgtr lds sgd oqdqdpthrhsdr enq sgd tshkhy`-
tion of the tax incentives for 2017.

A`rhb d`qmhmfr odq rg`qd `qd cdsdqlhmdc ax chuhchmf sgd Bnlo`mx&r mds oqnǐs ax sgd vdhfgsdc `udq`fd mtladq 
of ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding the average number of ordinary shares redeemed and 
held by the Company as treasury shares. The basic earnings per share equal the diluted earnings per share, as 
there are currently no share options that would potentially increase the number of issued shares.

2017 2016

Accounting profit before tax 55,599 38,894

Effect of tax base increasing items 11,841 11,782

Effect of tax base decreasing items (46,142) (81,081)

Tax base                                                             21,298 (30,405)

Tax at the rate of 18%  3,834 -

Tax reliefs (3,834) -

Cdedqqdc s`w qdbnfmhrdc hm oqnǐs nq knrr 2,200 (547)

Income tax expense 2,200 (547)

2017 2016

Mds oqnǐs 'hm GQJ &///( 53,399 38,347

Weighted average number of shares 4,173,705 4,169,725

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in kunas and lipas) 12.79 9.20

2017 2016

Balance at beginning of the year (11,337) (45,062)

New accruals - 6,629

Income tax - (1,193)

Reserves from accruals of foreign exchange differences, net                                            - 5,436

Realization of exchange differences 11,337 28,289

Balance at end of year - (11,337)
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36.	 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS (continued) 39.	 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

37.	 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

38.	 ACCRUED EXPENSES

(in thousands of kunas) (in thousands of kunas)

(in thousands of kunas)

(in thousands of kunas)

2017 2016

Balance at 1 January 211,430 147,381

Qdbk`rrhǐb`shnm eqnl knmf,sdql kn`mr 'Mnsd 22( 126,403 90,506

New loans raised 85,995 95,927

Interest invoiced 15,213 18,297

Exchange rate differences (2,268) (2,614)

Interest paid (16,166) (17,608)

Principal repaid (287,152) (120,459)

Balance at 31 December 133,455 211,430

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Amounts due to employees 7,713 7,075

Due to the State and State institutions 4,493 4,016

Other current liabilities 46 46

12,252 11,136

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Accrued tool expenses 3,286 12,920

Other current liabilities 6,867 1,199

10,153 14,119

Transactions with related companies were as follows:

Receivables and payables for 
goods, services and interest

Receivables Payables

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

AO AD Plastik Togliatti, Russia / 
AO ADP, Russia 84,458 103,639 1 2,111

ZAO ADP KALUGA, Russia 58,541 66,366 58 58

ADP d.o.o. Mladenovac, Serbia 22,053 22,699 10,614 2,355

EURO APS, Romania 3,872 4,149 - 79

Bdms`q y` hrsq`ˑhu`mid h q`yuni+ 
Croatia 1 2 5 5

AD Plastik d.o.o., Slovenia - - 2,027 929

168,925 196,855 12,705 5,537

Receivables and payables for loans
Receivables Payables

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

ZAO ADP KALUGA, Russia 39,915 38,154 - - 

ADP d.o.o. Mladenovac, Serbia 36,070 21,162 - - 

AO AD Plastik Togliatti, Russia / 
AO ADP, Russia 22,541 22,673 - - 

AD Plastik d.o.o., Slovenia - - - - 

98,526 81,989 - -
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40.3.	 Financial risk management objectives

Ehm`mbh`k qhrjr `qd qdk`sdc sn ǐm`mbh`k u`qh`akdr sg`s b`m b`trd cheǐbtkshdr hm rdquhbhmf ǐm`mbh`k kh`ahkh-
ties, ensuring liquidity, debt management, etc. The Company does not have a formal risk management 
program, however risk management is performed by the Finance function of the Company, which co-
nqchm`sdr `bbdrr sn cnldrshb `mc hmsdqm`shnm`k ǐm`mbh`k l`qjdsr+ lnmhsnqr `mc l`m`fdr sgd ǐm`mbh`k 
risks relating to the operations of the Company, performs risk management at Company’s by means of 
internal risk reports, which analyse exposures by the degree and magnitude of risks, and implementing 
activities to manage the risks effectively and minimise them.

40.4.	 Price risk management

The Company's operations expose it to price risk, which is the risk associated with changes in the pric-
es of key raw materials, transportation, other production costs and strong pressure from competitors 
and customers. However, in the automotive industry, open product price calculations prevail, and the 
price fluctuations of raw materials and other costs, either the upward or downward, are being adjusted 
with customers through selling price on a monthly, quarterly or semi-annual basis (depending on the 
customer).

The largest markets on which the Company provides its services and sells its products comprise the 
EU market and the market of the Russian Federation. The Management Board determines the prices of 
its products for each foreign market separately. 

40.5.	 Interest rate risk

Hmsdqdrs q`sd qhrj hr sgd qhrj sg`s sgd u`ktd ne ` ǐm`mbh`k hmrsqtldms vhkk ektbst`sd ctd sn bg`mfdr hm 
l`qjds hmsdqdrs q`sdr qdk`shud sn sgd hmsdqdrs q`sd+ vghbg `ookhdr sn sgd ǐm`mbh`k hmrsqtldms- Hmsdqdrs q`sd 
risk is linked to changes in return rates of assets and liabilities and in values resulting from interest rate 
changes.

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from its borrowings and from its interest generating assets, 
like loans given to subsidiaries. The interest rate risk exposure is minimal, considering that around 90% 
ne Bnlo`mxƦr anqqnvhmfr `qd `fqddc vhsg ǐwdc hmsdqdrs q`sdr+ vghkd hmsdqdrs q`sd qhrj dwonrtqd eqnl 
interest generating assets is linked with Croatian National Bank decisions on interest rates that can 
be charged to subsidiaries. The Company continuously monitors interest rate changes and forecasts, 
u`qhntr rbdm`qhnr `qd rhltk`sdc s`jhmf hmsn `bbntms qdǐm`mbhmf+ btqqdms rs`sd qdmdv`k `mc `ksdqm`shud 
ǐm`mbhmf--

40.2.	 Categories of financial instruments

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Financial assets 437,722 453,820

Non-current trade receivables (Note 24) 76,925 135,937

Given loans (Notes 23, 28) 102,538 135,039

Trade receivables (Note 26) 231,156 139,730

Nsgdq qdbdhu`akdr `mc nsgdq ǐm`mbh`k `rrdsr 23,959 39,071

Cash and cash equivalents and deposits (Note 29) 3,144 4,043

Financial liabilities 502,650 530,028

Loans received (Notes 33, 36) 335,900 385,842

Trade and other payables 166,750 144,186

40.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT  
(continued)

(in thousands of kunas)

Nsgdq qdbdhu`akdr hmbktcd sgd a`k`mbdr eqnl sgd enkknvhmf khmd hsdlr hm sgd rs`sdldms ne ǐm`mbh`k onrh-
shnm9 nsgdq qdbdhu`akdr kdrr qdbdhu`akdr eqnl sgd Rs`sd+ `mc nsgdq ǐm`mbh`k `rrdsr-

Sq`cd `mc nsgdq o`x`akdr hmbktcd sgd a`k`mbdr eqnl sgd enkknvhmf khmd hsdlr hm sgd rs`sdldms ne ǐm`m-
cial position: trade payables, advances received and other current liabilities, less amounts owed to the 
State.

@s sgd qdonqshmf c`sd sgdqd `qd mn rhfmhǐb`ms bnmbdmsq`shnmr ne bqdchs qhrj nm kn`mr `mc qdbdhu`akdr 
designated at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income. 
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40.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT  
(continued)

(in thousands of kunas)

40.8.	 Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Management Board. The Company 
manages its liquidity using banking facilities (overdrafts) and by continuously monitoring forecast and 
`bst`k b`rg eknvr `mc l`sbghmf sgd l`stqhsx oqnǐkdr ne hsr ǐm`mbh`k `rrdsr `mc kh`ahkhshdr- 

Sgd enkknvhmf s`akdr cds`hk sgd Bnlo`mxƦr qdl`hmhmf bnmsq`bst`k l`stqhsx enq hsr mnm,cdqhu`shud ǐm`m-
cial assets and liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of 
ǐm`mbh`k `rrdsr `mc kh`ahkhshdr a`rdc nm sgd d`qkhdrs c`sd nm vghbg sgd Bnlo`mx b`m qdpthqd o`xldms 
and can be required to pay.

2017 Weighted average interest 
rate Up to 1 month 1 to 3 months 3 months to 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total

Assets
Non-interest 
bearing - 95,056 67,562 89,020 76,925 62 328,625

Interest bearing 4.65% 1,111 1,121 10,013 87,923 28,195 128,362
96,167 68,683 99,033 164,848 28,257 456,987

Liabilities
Non-interest 
bearing - 79,426 68,630 18,694 - - 166,750

Interest bearing 3.05% 12,503 42,480 85,413 197,497 15,438 353,331
91,929 111,110 104,108 197,497 15,438 520,081

2016 Weighted average interest 
rate Up to 1 month 1 to 3 months 3 months to 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total

Assets
Non-interest 
bearing - 58,095 58,280 49,509 135,941 62 301,887

Interest bearing 5.20% 1,532 4,360 63,566 92,293 4,675 166,427
59,627 62,640 113,076 228,234 4,737 468,314

Liabilities
Non-interest 
bearing - 68,706 62,637 12,841 - - 144,184

Interest bearing 3.76% 4,569 42,200 174,389 187,196 29 408,384
73,275 104,838 187,230 187,196 29 552,568
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40.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

40.9.	 Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments held to maturity in the ordinary course of business are carried at the lower of 
cost and net amount less repaid portion.

Fair value is the price that would be generated from the sales of some item of an asset or paid for 
transferring some liability in a fair transaction between market participants at the measurement date, 
regardless of whether it would be directly visible or evaluated by applying some other valuation tech-
nique.

At 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of cash, receivables, short-term liabilities, accrued expens-
dr+ rgnqs,sdql anqqnvhmfr `mc nsgdq ǐm`mbh`k hmrsqtldmsr l`sbg sgdhq e`hq u`ktdr-

41.	 EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE REPORTING DATE

@esdq 20 Cdbdladq 1/06+ sgdqd vdqd mn dudmsr sg`s vntkc g`ud ` rhfmhǐb`ms hlo`bs nm sgd ǐm`mbh`k 
rs`sdldmsr enq sgd xd`q 1/06+ qdrodbshudkx sgdx `qd mns ne rtbg rhfmhǐb`mbd sn sgd Bnlo`mx sn qdpthqd 
chrbknrtqd hm sgd mnsdr sn sgd ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr- 

42.	 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Based on the Management's estimate, the Company had no material contingent liabilities at 31 Decem-
adq 1/06 vghbg vntkc qdpthqd sn ad chrbknrdc hm sgd mnsdr sn sgd ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr-

As at 31 December 2017 there were no material legal actions outstanding against the Company with an 
dwodbsdc mdf`shud ntsbnld nsgdq sg`m sgnrd qdekdbsdc hm sgdrd ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr-

43.	 APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.Sgdrd ǐm`mbh`k rs`sdldmsr vdqd `ooqnudc ax sgd L`m`fdldms An`qc ne @C Ok`rshj c-c- `mc `tsgnqhrdc 
for issue on 19 April 2018.

For AD Plastik d.d. Solin:

	
Marinko Došen, President of the Management Board

Katija Klepo, Member of the Management Board

R`mi` Ahnɪhɤ+ Ldladq ne sgd L`m`fdldms An`qc

Mladen Peroš, Member of the Management Board
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